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The governing body present their annual report together with the financial statements and 
auditor’s report for Harlow College for the year ended 31 July 2023.   
 
Legal status 
 
The Corporation was established under the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 for the 
purpose of conducting Harlow College. The College is an exempt charity for the purposes of Part 
3 of the Charities Act 2011. 
 

Stansted Airport College which is part of Harlow College opened in September 
2018.  It is the UK’s first all-round aviation further education institute and is 
addressing the growing airport related skills gaps.  It is named Stansted Airport 

College as it is located at London Stansted Airport.   
 
Mission 
 
Harlow College is committed to ensuring that we change and transform the lives of young people 
and adults in our community.  We want all of our learners to achieve their ambitions, contribute 
significantly to the productivity of the economy and have happy and purposeful lives.  We have a 
relentless focus on “More than Courses. Careers”. 
 
At the core of our strategy is: 
 

S: Students at the heart 
T: Teamwork - work together, achieve together  
A: Be Ambitious, Build Futures 
R: Respect each other, share similarities and celebrate differences  
 

Harlow College is a medium sized Further Education (FE) college in North West Essex with 2 
campuses and 4 smaller satellite learning centres. The College’s main campus is on the edge of 
Harlow’s town centre, with Stansted Airport College (part of Harlow College) located at London 
Stansted Airport.  The smaller satellite learning centres within Harlow and at Stansted Airport are 
used to deliver the majority of its adult provision. The College offers a wide variety of vocational, 
technical and professional qualifications including apprenticeships and programmes for learners 
with high needs.  In 2022/23 the College had over 5,000 students enrolled on courses. The College 
draws just under half of its learners from Harlow, with the remainder primarily from West Essex, 
East Hertfordshire and North London. 
 
Strategic Plan: More than Courses. Careers. (2019-2024) 
 
We are building on key partnerships we have established with employers, businesses, community 
groups, schools, colleges and universities – we pride ourselves on our enterprising approach, 
ensuring that we develop the skills needed for our thriving innovation corridor.   
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We have shaped our plan around the following intentions: 
 

• Career-led curriculum. 
• Quality of Education and Experience. 
• Resources. 

 
Career-led Curriculum 

  
• Our curriculum planning will focus on the maintenance and development of the ‘More 

than courses. Careers’ approach, in particular partnerships with key employers including 
Stansted Airport, Princess Alexandra Hospital, and development linked to the Garden 
Towns on the outskirts of Harlow. 
 

• Our students, whatever their age, background or mode of study will have access to a 
career-led curriculum that develops more than a qualification and allows them to 
successfully progress to their next stage.  
 

• The College’s curriculum will be designed with clear pathways for learners to enter the 
system at every level and succeed. This will be increasingly important as we continue to 
identify lost learning from the COVID-19 
pandemic, embrace curriculum reform (for 
example T Levels) and review our partnerships 
with employers.  
  

• We will build on our successful Learning, Teaching and Assessment Strategy to ensure that 
students are equipped with the digital skills, industry skills, and the English and 
Mathematic skills required to be successful. 

  
• We will develop our students to be independent learners and thinkers, equipping them 

with the flexibility and resilience they will require for an unknown future. We will use digital 
technologies to equip them for a changing world, in particular the 4th Industrial Revolution 
and rapid technological changes. 
 

• Our students will need the skills to be active citizens, understanding and changing 
habits, in terms of sustainability, low carbon technologies and health. We will build these, 
alongside our digital approach, into the curriculum, as well as College policies and 
procedures. 
 

• We are committed to the Carbon Reduction Roadmap from the Association of Colleges 
and as such are putting in place Carbon Literacy champions through the Carbon Literacy 
Trust Programme. 
 

• We are working across Greater Essex with the Chamber of Commerce, as part of the 
Strategic Development Fund and Local Skills Improvement plans, to develop sector-
based employer boards to inform our curriculum. As well as working with large 
employers, like Stansted Airport, we will also ensure small and medium sized enterprises 



 
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2023 
Strategic Report 
 

6 

have a voice. National and global trends will be considered, as well as, the local economy. 
We have partnered with Essex based colleges to have a coherent voice and approach. 

 
• We will continue to work with employers and community partners, to develop pre-

apprenticeship programmes for young people and adults. 
  

• Our curriculum will be designed to meet industry standards and wherever possible provide 
students and apprentices with the professional status required in their sector.  

  
• We will develop our technical provision, including new T Levels and progression pathways 

to Levels 4 and 5, reviewing our Higher Education Strategy and ensuring we have a 
sustainable model for the future. In December 2021 the College was successful in its bid 
for a new Institute for Technology (IoT) with South Essex College and colleges within our 
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP). 

  
• We will continue our regional work with job centres supporting adults back into work in a 

flexible and pro-active way.  However, we also need to shift the balance of this work to in-
work training with the current post-pandemic low unemployment rates. We are also 
committed to life-long learning and ensuring that our response to the Government White 
Paper is strong, providing good opportunities to retrain and up-skill.  
  

Quality of Education and Experience 
  
We want everyone to reach their full potential and receive a good quality education, to do this 
we will: 
  

• Set aspirational targets that ensure the highest outcomes in terms of achievement, 
progress, value added and destinations 

 
• Build on our successful Ofsted Inspection of 2019, with the aim of being  Outstanding 

under the new Education Inspection Framework 
 

• Embed the practice of our Maths Centre for Excellence, developing a strong network with 
other colleges and an action research-led  approach to educational improvement 

 
• Be seen as a regional centre of excellence for the delivery of technical education, in 

particular focusing on our partnerships with key employers in the region and launching an 
IoT  

 
• Be recognised through the achievement of awards, and celebrate success, for example, the  

maintenance of Apple Distinguished School status 
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Resources 
  
The biggest challenge is to manage the investment in the College infrastructure whilst responding 
to a challenging policy and funding environment from Government. 
  
Our priorities will be to: 

  
• Achieve continued ‘Good’ financial health and meet our bank covenants, in  order 

for us to invest in our curriculum, resources and staff 
 

• Improve the efficiency of the curriculum whilst offering high quality      outcomes, with a focus 
on managing group sizes and staffing to ensure value for money alongside effectiveness 
 

• To manage the increasing cost-base as effectively as possible, reviewing processes and 
procedures to ensure we are getting best value for money, including reviewing approaches 
to sustainability across our buildings and infrastructure as part of our Carbon Reduction 
Roadmap 

 
• Manage the complexity of the apprenticeship levy, continuing to secure new  business 

from employers 
 

• Secure project based work that complements existing provision and allows us to best meet 
the needs of the labour market 

 
• Review and develop a sustainable funding model for the delivery of the Adult Education 

Budget, Higher Education and  Level 4 and 5 work with a focus on higher level technical 
skills 

 
• Work to develop pathways for industry professionals into teaching,  providing a 

‘scaffolded’ system of development and training, bidding for funds to support new 
teachers where available and introducing a new applicant tracking system 

 
• Give a commitment to our unions to ensure staff pay awards are planned into our 

budgeting and measures are put in place to ensure we meet the recommended thresholds  
 

• Invest in our staff through continued support for professional development, digital 
development and our well-being programmes 

 
• Further rejuvenation of our estate, including capital funds as part of the IoT and 

undertaking a campus “master planning” exercise to ensure we have shovel ready projects 
focused on areas of growth and refurbishment  
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• The Consolidation of our previous strategy, including embedding
of HAMEC (Harlow Advanced Manufacturing and Engineering Centre)
with a Skills Advisory panel, work on Sustainable Construction,
partnerships with UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA) and Stansted
Airport College

• The continued investment in new technologies to support the
development of digital skills

RESOURCES 

Harlow College has various resources that it can deploy in pursuit of its strategic objectives.  

People 

During the year the College employed on average 466 people (in 2021/22 478 people), of whom 
303 are teaching staff (in 2021/22 313 people).  The decrease reflects the reduction in student 
numbers and natural wastage. 

The College enrolled the following students during the year: 

Type of provision 
2022/23 
Numbers 

of Learners 

2021/22 
Numbers 

of Learners 

2020/21 
Number of 

Learners 

16 to 19 Study Programmes 2,509 2,501 2,695 

Apprenticeships (starts) 551 662 448 

Adult learning programmes 2573 2,071 2,055 

In 2022/23 the College expected to sustain the learner numbers at Stansted Airport College, 
however many of those potential learners instead obtained employment at the airport due to the 
airport experiencing staff shortages post pandemic.  The College has since developed strategies 
with the airport to provide a pipeline of trained and work ready learners.  Apprenticeship learner 
numbers were deliberately controlled in order for the College to resolve legacy issues arising from 
the pandemic.  Adult learner numbers are improving due to the College diversifying (e.g. e-
learning programmes). 

Tangible Resources 

Tangible resources include the main Harlow College site (consisting of land space and several 
buildings), the Stansted Airport College site consisting of one building, and three other small sites 
in Harlow, including an adult training centre “Bright Futures” in Harlow Town Centre and a hair 
and beauty education provision “The Salon” in the Town Centre.  The majority of teaching and 
training is delivered from Harlow College’s main site, a central location close to Harlow’s principal 
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shopping centre and a short walk away from Harlow’s bus station and main railway station.  In 
July 2020 the College was donated the University building from Anglia Ruskin University which is 
located on the main Harlow College campus.  The College has been occupying the building for 
the purposes of Higher Education and maintaining the building since it was constructed in 2010.  
The Harlow College site has modern facilities for engineering, performing arts, visual arts, 
construction, science and motor vehicle maintenance.  During 2022/23 the College improved 
several areas on the main campus, opened a new renewable energy centre and carried out 
refurbishments for a new Institute of Technology (IoT).   The College continues to invest in its 
digital strategy which includes providing over four thousand computers/devices for student use.  
In pursuance of its e-learning initiative the College makes provision for all 16-18 full-time students 
to have access to a portable tablet/device.  This will enable students to develop their digital skills, 
encourage more independent and creative approaches to learning and streamline assessment 
processes. 
 
Reputation 
 
We are graded Good by Ofsted (January 2019) and have won awards for our innovative approach 

to learning.  In 2017 we were the first college in the UK to be given Apple 
Distinguished School status for our pioneering approach to the use of new 
technology, which we maintained in 2022 for a further three years.  During the third 
application of Apple Distinguished School it provided a great retrospective of the 
College’s progress and allowed the College to understand how the pandemic 

lockdown positively accelerated the development of the College’s digital strategy. 
 
Financial 
 
The College has £37.3 million of net assets (2021/22 £37.2 million) including £1.1 million pension 
liabilities (2021/22 £1.2 million), long term debt (bank loans) of £3.3 million (2021/22 £3.9m) and 
long term capital grant funding of £18.0 million (2021/22 £18.8 million).  
 
Stakeholders 

 
The College has many stakeholders (Employers, Community, Education and Civic) including: 
 

• Our current, future and past students and trainees. 

• Our staff and their trade unions (UCU, Unison and NEU).  The Executive team 
named on page 3. 

• Local community groups and employers (including Stansted Airport 
(Manchester Airport Group)). 

• Local schools and other education institutions (including Anglia Ruskin 
University). 

• Local councils – Harlow District Council, Uttlesford District Council and both 
Essex and Hertfordshire County Councils. 
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• Government departments / Regional Development Agencies / Local Enterprise 
Partnerships. 

• Education sector funding bodies. 

• FE Commissioner. 

 

Harlow College recognises the importance of these relationships and engages in regular 
communication with them.   
 
Public benefit 
 
Harlow College is an exempt charity under Part 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is regulated by the 
Secretary of State for Education. The members of the Governing Body, who are trustees of the 
charity, are disclosed on page 26 to 28. In setting and reviewing the College’s strategic objectives, 
the Governing Body has had due regard for the Charity Commission’s guidance on public benefit 
and particularly upon its supplementary guidance on the advancement of education.  
 
In delivering its mission, the College provides identifiable public benefits through the 
advancement of education to thousands of students, including over one hundred students with 
high needs. The College provides courses without charge to young people, to those who are 
unemployed and adults taking English and Maths courses. The College adjusts its courses to meet 
the needs of local employers and provides training to hundreds of apprentices. The College is 
committed to providing information, advice and guidance to the students it enrols and to finding 
suitable courses for as many students as possible regardless of their educational background.  
 
DEVELOPMENTS 

 
The College is well placed to deliver high quality education and training for West 
Essex.  Harlow is located in a strong position within the UK Innovation Corridor 
(UKIC), which has an ambitious infrastructure plan to support the growing industries 
between London and Cambridge.   
 
Through the UK Community Renewal Fund the College developed a project focussed 

on widening participation and increasing higher levels of achievement to address the qualification 
disparity in Harlow. We created a project providing direct financial support to economically 
inactive, unemployed and employed adults interested in developing their skills, prioritising 
recruitment and engagement with those made unemployed or redundant due to Covid-19.   
 
The College was a lead college in Essex for the Strategic Development Fund (SDF), which is capital 
investment to reshape teaching and training provision and update FE facilities to meet local skills 
priorities, and to drive more effective and efficient use of funds through a more coordinated FE 
offer. 
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In April 2023 the College opened a Renewable Energy Training Centre in association with 
Mitsubishi Electric which will enable future generations of heating engineers to train using green 
technologies as well as helping to reduce carbon emissions. The centre is fully equipped with 
Mitsubishi Electric Ecodan Air Source Heat Pumps, roof-mounted photo-
voltaic solar panels, associated collection points and energy-storage unit and 
two electric vehicle charging points. The solar panels will provide enough 
energy to power the centre and any extra energy will be put back into the 
National Grid.  The wider aim is to offer training to local employers in the 
plumbing and electrical trades to enable them to be fully prepared to meet 
Government targets on energy efficiency. 
  

With funding and support from Essex County Council in March 
2023 the College opened a new Electric Vehicle Centre to 
provide upskilling courses for local Automotive Technicians to 
develop the skills and knowledge required to maintain and 
repair electric vehicles. Alongside this, community learning 
workshops will provide local electric vehicle owners and 
enthusiasts opportunities to understand more about their 
vehicle including safety awareness. It is anticipated that by 

2030 there could be between approximately 6,000 and 14,000 battery electric vehicles in Harlow. 
The Electric Vehicle Centre will address this growing need, upskill local employees with Electric 
Vehicle repair and maintenance qualifications and support sustainable change. 
 
The College continues to grow its English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) offer, with 
opportunities to develop and increase confidence in speaking, writing and reading English.  Our 
ESOL learners often progress on to other vocational and academic areas within the College. 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW 
 
Financial Results 
 
The College generated a deficit from operations of £86k (in 2021/22 £1.2m deficit) excluding LGPS 
pension £63k surplus (2021/22 surplus £194k).  The college received 90% of its total income for 
2022/23 as grants from funding bodies, most notably from the Education and Skills Funding 
Agency for 16-18 provision.  The improvement in performance from the prior year was largely 
due to diversifying and increasing project income and a reduction in LGPS pension costs.  
 
The movement and the gain in the pension scheme balance have resulted in a total 
comprehensive gain for the year of £163k (2022: £11.3m gain).  
 
The College has received £20.3m of Government grants which have not yet been recognised as 
income and are being held as a liability on the balance sheet.  At the balance sheet date the 
College held net current assets of £543k and net assets of £37.3m, which includes a pension 
liability of £1.1m.   
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Cash Flow and Liquidity 
 
At £2.0m (2021/22 £450k), net cash flow from operating activities was excellent.  The movement 
from the prior year is mainly due to creditors.   
 
The size of the College’s total borrowing and its approach to interest rates has been calculated to 
ensure a reasonable cushion between the total cost of servicing debt and operating cash flow. 
During the year this margin was not exceeded.  The loans are on a fixed rate providing protection 
from the recent rate rises.  One loan facility ends July 2027.  The other loan facility expires 
November 2026.  In line with the new rules introduced by the Department for Education in 
November 2022, the College will notify the ESFA when it needs to be refinanced. 
 
Developments 
 
Tangible and intangible fixed asset additions during the year amounted to £1,895k.  This was split 
between land and buildings including enhancements of £1.2m, £645k equipment, £35k software 
and goodwill.   
 
The Colleges capital plans are to use the recently received DfE reclassification fund, capital 
transformation fund and energy efficiency grant (total £1.6m) to clad and glaze an aging and 
energy deficient building on the main campus. 
 
Reserves 
 
The College has accumulated reserves of £37.3m (2021/22 £37.2m) including the revaluation 
reserve of £11.8m (2021/22 £11.9m) and cash balances of £6.4m (2021/22 £5.3m). The College 
wishes to accumulate reserves and cash balances in order to support the strategic plan. 
 
FUTURE PROSPECTS 
 
Harlow is set for significant growth over the next few years. The current population is projected 
to grow with thousands of new homes planned as part of the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town 
Project.  Harlow’s Enterprise Zone of three areas in Harlow continues to build on the Harlow 
tradition for innovation and enterprise with a campus environment for dynamic businesses 
creating new technologies and generating economic growth. The inclusion of a planned new 
hospital, a redevelopment of Harlow town centre and other significant infrastructure projects, will 
all bring with them challenges and opportunities for skills and employment in construction, health 
and science, engineering, technical and digital.  The College will respond to these changes by 
ensuring the curriculum offered meets the needs of the community and employers we serve.  
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In 2021 Harlow Town was successful in its application for a “Town Deal” up to £23.7 million (part 
of the Government’s £3.6 billion Towns Fund) to deliver long-term and sustainable economic 
growth in Harlow, which also includes the development of Harlow College’s Institute of 
Technology (IoT).  Institutes of Technology are unique collaborations between employers, 
colleges and universities that specialise in offering high-quality higher technical education and 

training in subjects such as advanced manufacturing, digital and cyber security, 
aerospace and healthcare, which will deliver the skilled workforce businesses 
need and get more people into jobs closer to home. 
 
Harlow College’s Institute of Technology (IoT) with immersive room, digi labs 
and simulation rooms opened September 2023.  The IoT brings together FE and 
HE institutions with employers and anchor institutions across the South East 
region to widen opportunities to learners of all ages, to create, with employers, 
specialist provision to improve the technical skills needed by the local 

workforce.  The College is working in partnership with regionally important employers such as 
London Stansted Airport, the UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA) and Princess Alexandra Hospital 
NHS to plan provision that will focus on curriculum pathways in Engineering and Manufacturing, 
Health and Science, Construction, Logistics and Transport and IT & Digital. The project will support 
the next phase of economic growth within Harlow and the wider West Essex area including the 
relocation of UKHSA to Harlow, the new hospital project and the growth of the Harlow Enterprise 
Zone with its wider digital technology requirements.  
 

The College as a fundamental institution of Harlow will be part of Levelling Up Harlow, which is 
about realising the potential of Harlow town and everyone that lives there.  Major investments for 
Harlow are planned which will provide an opportunity for change in the fortunes of the town, its 
people and businesses.  Funding has already been secured from the Government’s Towns Fund 
and Levelling Up Fund to help develop the town. Plans are also progressing to bring the UKHSA 
to Harlow and also to build a much-needed new hospital. 
 

Harlow College has been a T Level provider since 
September 2021.  T Levels are a new technical 
qualification which follow GCSEs and are equivalent to 
three A Levels.  T Levels combine classroom theory, 

practical learning and an industry placement with an employer to make sure students have real 
experience of the workplace.  With ring-fenced Government funding for T Levels the College will 
purchase specialist equipment to support further T Level implementation.  The College is planning 
on introducing more T Levels over the next few years, with a full compliment by 2026.    

 
The College continues to embed significant curriculum changes for our High Needs learners, to 
ensure that all High Needs learners undertake a bespoke learning journey.  The College continues 
to build on its effective partnerships with major local employers to provide work experience for 
High Needs learners. 
 
The College feels it is in a good position to expand its apprenticeship delivery by taking on more 
apprentices in high demand areas. 
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The College is exploring a new partnership with Anglia Ruskin University (ARU) as one avenue to 
re-grow Higher Education provision for September 2024. 
 
The College curriculum is reviewed annually during which strong use is made of local labour 
market information, changing demographics and employer feedback.  The curriculum is closely 
aligned with the local employment and skills priorities.  The College intends to continue explore 
different project work for the benefit of the community, which also enables the College to receive 
alternative sources of income.   
 
Financial Plan 
 
The Governors approved a financial plan for the period 2022/23 to 2024/25 in July 2023 which set 
objectives for this period.  The College aims to maintain the minimum financial health rating of 
“Good” and ensure that bank covenants will be met.   
 
The College is showing recovery in the Adult education budget and feels that it can confidently 
sustain this recovery.  The College will continue to diversify and take advantage of Project income.  
16-19 learners have experienced significant growth in September 2023 and Stansted Airport 
College learner numbers have returned to pre-pandemic levels. 
 
Treasury Policies and Objectives 
 
The College has treasury management arrangements in place to manage cash flows, banking 
arrangements and the risks associated with those activities.   
 
The College currently has no plans to increase borrowings and is confident that the existing loans 
will be repaid according to the scheduled repayment plans. 
 
Reserves 
 
The College has no formal Reserves Policy, but recognises the importance of reserves in the 
financial stability of an organisation, and ensures that there are adequate reserves to support the 
College’s core activities.  The College currently holds no restricted reserves.  As at the balance 
sheet date, the Income and Expenditure account reserve stood at £25.5m (2021/22 £25.3m).  The 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) liability is nil as 31 July 2023 (2021/22 £Nil).  The total 
LGPS pension actuarial movement during 2022/23 is £149k gain (2021/22 £12.3m actuarial gain).  
The substantial movement in the deficit can be mainly attributed to the increase in discount rate 
from 3.4% to 5.15%.  The initial FRS102 actuarial valuation showed a net asset of £12.5m however 
as the LGPS surplus is not a realisable asset and is likely to change over the long period, the 
actuarial valued asset position has been reduced to nil in the accounts.  Pension deficits are not 
an immediate liability, it would be met in the form of incremental employer contributions over an 
agreed time period.  The Corporation intends to maintain reserves over the life of the strategic 
plan and where possible generate annual operating surpluses. 
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 
Risk Management 
 
The College has well developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk 
management in all that it does.  Risk Management processes are designed to protect its assets, 
reputation and financial stability.  The governing body has overall responsibility for risk 
management and its approach to managing risks and internal controls is explained in the 
Statement of Corporate Governance. 
 
A comprehensive risk register is maintained at the College level which is reviewed each time the 
Audit Committee meet.  The risk register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks 
occurring, the potential impact on the College and the actions being taken to reduce and mitigate 
the risks.  Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring system.   
 
The main risks affecting the College are outlined below along with action taken to minimise them.  
Not all the factors are within the College’s control.  There are other factors besides those listed 
below which may also adversely affect the College.  
 
Some of the key risks identified: 
 

(1) Curriculum reform: replacing vocational and technical programmes with successor 
qualifications e.g. T Levels and Advance British Standard. Ensuring our academic offer is viable 
and implementing any related Government reforms.  These reforms bring huge risk to 
defunding qualifications. 

 
Control measure: 
Review of the Government published qualifications being affected. Reviewing areas that 
remain at specific risk.  Director of T Levels is in place and working effectively with delivery 
teams to plan T Levels for future years.  T Levels for 2023, 2024 and 2025 have been 
identified.  2023 Curriculum Planning reflects and aligns with new T Levels. Senior 
Management discussions and communications with awarding bodies, AoC & DfE to identify 
gaps & raise concerns.  

 
 
(2) Staff recruitment and retention: Failure to recruit to hard to fill posts to support the curriculum 

and support industry staff into learning, teaching and assessment (LTA). 
 

Control measure: 
A methodology in place allowing industry uplift for teaching staff. This is to support the 
recruitment and retention in specialist areas. Specialist support for LTA and new staff 
allocated mentors to model good practice in the classroom. Teacher training and regular 
CPD slots in place to cover "back to basics" - planning, pace and structure of lessons, 
behaviour management and models of assessment.  The College received Taking Teaching 
Further grant funding to help address this risk.  Exploring different options such as agencies, 
jobs fairs, international recruitment and using UK Border Agency licence.   
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(3) Student Recruitment: failure to increase learners for HR programmes and compliance with OfS 

regulation. 
 

Control measure: 
Monitoring of student numbers against planned.  Continue to promote externally through 
UCAS and clearing.  Promote internally our own HE offer following the UCAS deadline.  Cross 
College event for all Level 3 students to attend.  Timely compliance with OFS monitored at 
Standards Committee. Using IoT objectives for targeted increase of HE numbers. Amended 
staffing structure for 2023 to support HE focus. 

 
Below are a selection of the College’s key performance indicators for 2022/23: 
 

Measure Target  Performance 

Successfully implement our 
T Level offer and Institute of 
Technology (IoT) curriculum 
plan for Sept 2023-24 start   

In place for 
September 2023 

Completed 

Strategic Development fund 
– deliver against £2.75 
million bid 

Project completion Completed 
 

 
Student satisfaction  83% 80% 

16-18 Attendance  90% 84% 

16-18 Retention 93% 85% 

16-18 Achievement   
  

85% 74% 

Apprenticeship overall 
Achievement 

62% 56% 
 

Adult overall achievement 
rate  

94% 86% 

ESFA Good Financial Health 
  

Good Good 

Meet Test 1 and Test 2 of 
the bank covenants 

Yes/Yes Yes/Yes 

Maintain a staff turnover 
rate below the Association 
of Colleges benchmark 
(17.8%) 

<17.8% 15% 
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Harlow College is proud to be part of the new South East IoT, which covers the Local Enterprise 
partnership area of Essex, Kent and East Sussex.  Harlow College was awarded £1.8 million to 
upgrade facilities and equipment to boost access to higher technical training. This investment was 
supported by a further £0.5 million from the Harlow Towns Fund. 
 
Student Achievements 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The 2022/23 results relate to the cohort of learners commencing their studies at the College in 
the academic year 2020/21, which encountered significant disruptions attributable to the 
pandemic. This particular cohort, has been notably affected by grade inflation and the use of 
Teacher Assessed Grades (TAGs) and Centre Assessed Grades (CAGs). With increased exam-based 
assessment, this has influenced the lower achievement outcomes.  The College will review how 
learners prepare for exam-based assessments. 
 
The College is looking to improve student engagement to reduce the number of students 
withdrawing in the first few weeks, which impacts retention rates.  Retention continues to be 
challenging with our ESOL (English Second or Other Language) learners as learners moving out 
of the area mid-course impacts and reduces the College retention and attendance rate. 
 
Achievement for students on vocational courses improved overall this year with a 98% pass rate, 
with 60% of students gaining Merit, Distinction or Distinction* grades. These great results allow 
our students to progress directly to university or to take up apprenticeships as the route to 
combine their studies with employment. 
 
A Level students again secured places at some of the country’s top universities including Bath, 
Bristol, King's College London, Edinburgh and Nottingham to study subjects such as Medicine, 
Law, Chinese, Sociology, Music Technology and Biochemistry. 
 

The first full cohort of students on the new T Level courses also celebrated 
with a 100% pass rate, with 74% achieving the higher grades of Merit and 
Distinction.  100% of Industry Placements for T Level students were achieved 
with all students either completing or continuing placements. Good levels of 
employer engagement last year saw the establishment of regular employer 
forums leading to T level industry placement opportunities, job offers, 
participation careers fairs from key employers. 
 

16-18 outcomes 
(Main Study 

Programme Learners) 

 
2018/19 

(pre-
pandemic) 

 

2019/20 
 

2020/21 
 

2021/22 
 

2022/23 
 

Achievement %   82.6% 82.7% 78.0% 78% 74% 
Retention % 90.9% 92.8% 89.7% 85.8% 85% 
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T Level industry placements bring challenges to the College retention rate from employers 
offering industry placements that subsequently offering employment to the students.   
 
With the introduction of Apprenticeship standards in 2019, combined with the impact of the 
pandemic we have seen a significant drop in achievement rates since 2018.  The introduction of 
apprenticeship standards has meant that end point assessment created delays on learner 
achievement, but more significantly apprentices being furloughed or losing their jobs during the 
pandemic prolonged and impacted achievement during the period 2020-2023.  The 
apprenticeship achievement rate has shown consistent improvement over the past two years, 
reaching an overall rate of 56%, a notable increase from the previous year's achievement rate.  A 
substantial improvement in Engineering Apprenticeship achievements has had a significant 
impact on the overall College Apprenticeship achievement rate. 
 

Apprenticeships 
  

2018/19 
(pre-pandemic) 

2019/20 
 

2020/21 
 

2021/22 
  

2022/23 

Achievement %   64.7% 45.6% 33.9% 49% 56% 
 
The Government has established an aspirational target of 67% achievement rate for 
Apprenticeships, to be attained by 2025. However, the current national achievement rate (51.4% 
for 2021-22) significantly lags behind this target. 

 
Adult achievement rates continue to improve but not yet to pre-pandemic levels.   
 

Adults  
2018/19 

(pre-pandemic) 2019/20 
 

2020/21 
 

2022/23 

Achievement %   89.0% 82.0% 83.0% 86% 
Retention %  98.0% 96.9% 94.2% 92.6% 

 
Many adult learners face challenges with mental health and balancing work-life commitments, 
which impacts the retention of learners.  Achievement rates are higher for learners who have a 
clear line of sight into the work place and benefit from the opportunities to engage with 
employers, such as those at Stansted Airport.  
 
Learners that declared a difficulty, disability and/or health problem 
 

Learners  
2018/19 

(pre-pandemic) 2019/20 
 

2020/21 
 

2021/22 2022/23 

Achievement %   84.6% 84% 77% 82% 78% 
Retention %  94% 95% 91% 94% 88% 

 
Students with High Needs funding perform in line with other learners.  
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Payment Performance 
 
The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, in the absence of an agreement to 
the contrary, requires organisations to make payments to suppliers within 30 days of either the 
provision of goods or services or the date on which the invoice was received.  During the 
accounting period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023, the College paid 79% of its invoices within 30 
days.  The College incurred £Nil in late payment fees and £Nil interest charges in respect of late 
payment for this period.  
 
Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) 

The College is committed to reducing its carbon emissions and has taken the following 
measures in the year to improve energy efficiency: 

Homeworking where appropriate and 
feasible 

Staff attending energy/sustainability 
network/training events 

Use of virtual technology for meetings, 
training and staff development 

Installation of LED lighting, cladding, 
secondary glazing and solar panels 

Use of digital documents in favour of 
printed documents 

Monitoring of operational hours to condense 
and reduce late openings 

Car sharing between sites Campus economic closures during popular 
holiday periods (from 2024) 

 
Other measures 
Installation of electric vehicle charging points  

 
Quantification and Reporting Methodology  
We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have 
also used the GHG Reporting Protocol – Corporate Standard and have used the 2023 UK 
Government’s Conversion Factors for Company Reporting. 
  
Intensity measurement  

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per 
Full Time Equivalent staff member, the recommended ratio for the sector. 
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The College’s greenhouse gas emissions and energy use for the period are set out below: 
 

1 August 2022 
to 31 July 

2023 

1 August 2021 
to 31 July 

2022 

1 August 2020 
to 31 July 

2021 

Energy consumption used to calculate 
emissions (kWh) 4,145,838 4,413,559 5,174,901 

    
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes 
CO2e    
Gas consumption 494.17 555.29 650.27 

Owned transport 
5.41 7.42 Data not 

available 
Total 499.58 562.71 650.27 

    
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes 
CO2e    
Purchased electricity 299.09 265.23 344.96 

    
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes 
CO2e    
Business travel in employee owned 
vehicles 

33.88 29.82 13.37 

    
    
Total gross emissions 832.55 857.76 1008.60 
Reduction -3% -15%  
    
Targets    
2030 = 572 metric tonnes CO2e    
2040 = 285 metric tonnes CO2e    
2050 = 0 metric tonnes CO2e    
    
Intensity ratio    
Metric tonnes CO2e per square foot 2.11 2.17 2.55 
Metric tonnes CO2e per FTE staff 
member 2.23 2.27 2.67 
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Trade Union Facility Time 
 
The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 require the College 
to publish information on facility time arrangements for trade union officials at the College. 
 
Harlow College recognises three trade unions: UCU, Unison and NEU.  
 
For the period 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023: 
 

Numbers of employees who 
were relevant trade union 

officials in the period 

Full Time 
Equivalent 
employee 
number 

4 4 

 
Percentage of time Number of 

employees 
0% - 

1-50% 4 
51-99% - 
100% - 

 
Total cost of facility time 

£3,258 
Total pay bill 
£17,487,461 

Percentage of total bill spent on facility time 
0.02% 

 
 

 
 
Other Performance Measures 
 

The most recent Ofsted Inspection of the College dates from January 2019 
when Ofsted concluded that Harlow College is a good College. The 
College’s current self-assessment report for 2022/23 documents key 
strengths of the College and areas for improvement. 
 
The College has been awarded Apple Distinguished School (ADS) Status for 
the third time (2022-2025).   ADS centres are centres of leadership and 
educational excellence that demonstrated Apple’s vision for learning with 
technology.   

Time spent on paid trade union activities 
as a percentage of total paid facility time 

23% 
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Financial Performance  
  

2022/23 
Target 

2022/23 
Performance 

2023/24 
Target 

Adjusted income  £27m £25m £28m 
Surplus/(Deficit) (£500k) (£86k) £15k 
EBITDA 7% 4% 6% 
Borrowing as a % of adjusted income 18% 15% 14% 
Staff Costs as a % of adjusted income 70% 72% 68% 

 
EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
Equality 
 
The College has a duty under the Equality Act 2010 and is committed to tackling inequality and 
discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity and promoting equal treatment regardless of 
any Protected Characteristic. The College seeks to ensure that this commitment is reflected in 
everything that it does and that all College members, Governors, staff, students, partners, visitors, 
contractors and sub-contractors working on behalf of the College share this commitment.  The 
College’s Equality & Diversity Policy is published on the College’s website www.harlow-
college.ac.uk.   
 
Gender pay gap reporting        
 
Any organisation that has 250 or more employees must publish and report specific figures about 
their gender pay gap.  The figures are calculated as a ‘snapshot’ as at 31 March for public sector 
organisations.  The gender pay gap is the difference between the average earnings of men and 
women, expressed relative to men’s earnings. For example, ‘women earn 15% less than men per 
hour’. 
 
The overall gender split: 
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The images below show the gender distribution of all Harlow College staff across four equal 
quartiles. 
 

 
 
The mean Gender Pay Gap for 31st March 2022 was 4.13% and for 31st March 2023 was 3.85%. 
The median Gender Pay Gap was 11% for 31st March 2022 and 13.51% for 31st March 2023. The 
Gender pay gap continues to be low compared to the mean national average of 14.9%. 
 
Our analysis has identified that the most significant change relates to the introduction of the Real 
Living Wage which has led to the removal of the lower salary pay points. Roles on these points 
that were affected by this change included Support Workers, Catering Assistants and Cleaners. 
The majority of staff in these roles are female.  The full report is published on the College’s website 
www.harlow-college.ac.uk.   
 
 
Disability statement 
 
The College seeks to achieve the objectives set down in the Equality Act 2010. 
 
As a College we are committed to helping all of our students succeed. We recognise the 
importance of providing high quality teaching, learning and assessment, alongside the specific 
support needed to achieve your goals. 
 
The College recognises the barriers faced by people with disabilities in accessing and achieving 
Further Education. Our vision is to create an accessible and supportive environment for staff and 
students. We aim to provide equality of opportunity and freedom from discrimination on the 
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grounds of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation, in line with the Equality Act 2010 and 
the Children and Families Act 2014. 
 
The College aspires to the principles underpinning the SEND Code of Practice and the Children 
and Families Act 2014, particularly: 
 
“the need to support the child or young person, and the child’s parents, in order to facilitate the 
development of the child or young person and to help them achieve the best possible educational 
and other outcomes, preparing them effectively for adulthood”.  The College is proud of the 
College’s track record in opening up opportunities for students with disabilities and learning 
difficulties.  
 
At Harlow College, students can expect to study in an environment that positively encourages 
equality of opportunity and refuses to tolerate discrimination, in any form. Our Disability 
Statement affirms our commitment to these principles and provides you with a guide to the 
support we have available.  Our full disability statement is published on the College’s website 
www.harlow-college.ac.uk. 
 
Going concern 
 
At 31 July 2023 the College has net current assets of £543k (2021/22 £1.5m) and cash balance of 
£6,350k (2021/22 £5,277k).  The College has not had an overdraft facility during 2022/23.  The 
2023/24 student numbers are above target for securing Funding Body income for 2023/24 and 
2024/25.   
 
In June 2023 the bank covenant to measure earnings to cover loan and interest payments was 
reviewed.  Given the College’s low borrowings, the cash in hand and the risk of default had 
decreased, the bank agreed to moderately reduce the cover requirement.  This significantly 
reduces the likelihood of breaching the covenant and allows the College to invest in its strategic 
plan.  The College loans are on fixed interest rates until November 2026 and July 2027. 
 
In September 2023 the College received £1.2m as an additional ESFA allocation for 16-19 funding.  
This means that the College can set a surplus budget for 2023/24. 
 
The College recognises that inflation continues to be a challenge and is closely monitoring 
expenditure.  The College is in a fixed electricity contract until September 2024 and fixed gas 
contract until September 2024.   
 
After making appropriate enquiries, the Corporation considers that the college has adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it 
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. 
 
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
 
No events after the reporting period 
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Governance Statement 
 
The following statement is provided to enable readers of the annual report and accounts of 
the College to obtain a better understanding of its governance and legal structure.  This 
statement covers the period from 1st August 2022 to 31st July 2023 and up to the date of 
approval of the annual report and financial statements. 
 
The College endeavours to conduct its business: 

i. in accordance with the seven principles identified by the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life (selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty and 
leadership); 

 
ii. in full accordance with the guidance to colleges issued by the Association of Colleges 

in 2015, which it formally adopted 2 July 2015 The Code of Good Governance for 
English Colleges (“the Code”) 

 
In the opinion of the Governors, the College complies with all the provisions of the Code, and 
it has complied throughout the year ended 31 July 2023.  This opinion is based on an internal 
review of compliance with the Code reported to the Board on 16 October 2023.  The 
Corporation recognises that, as a body entrusted with both public and private funds, it has a 
particular duty to observe the highest standards of corporate governance at all times. In 
carrying out its responsibilities, it takes full account of the Code. 
 
In the Corporation meeting on 14th December 2023, the College formally adopted the Further 
Education Code of Good Governance published by the Association of Colleges, from the 1st 
August 2023.  The new Code is based on six fundamental principles: 

1. Determination of organisational aims and strategic oversight 
2. Responsibility and accountability 
3. Leadership and integrity 
4. Collaboration and stakeholder engagement 
5. Regulatory compliance 
6. Board and organisational effectiveness 
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The Corporation  
 
The members who are also trustees who served on the Corporation during the year and up to 
the date of signature of this report were as listed in the table below. 
 

Name Date of 
appointment 

Term 
of 
office 

Date of 
resignation 

Status of 
appointment 

Committees 
served 
 

Attendance 

Sotirios 
Adamopoulos 

Re-elected 
22.10.2018 

4 years Term of 
office ended 
21.10.2022 

Teaching Staff Standards and 
Curriculum 

100% (1/1) 

Sonny Bazzoni  Elected 
13.10.2023 

1 year  Student 
Governor 

 N/A 

Jon Bouffler Reappointed 
14.07.2020 

4 years 
 

 Governor Standards and 
Curriculum  

60% (3/5) 

Rod Bristow Reappointed 
02.01.2023 

4 years  Governor Standards and 
Curriculum,  
Chair of 
Standards and 
Curriculum from 
23.11.2022, 
Remuneration  

100% (5/5) 

Hannah 
Cheesman 

Elected 
13.10.2022 

2 years  Student 
Governor 

Standards and 
Curriculum 

100% (5/5) 

Julia Fillary Appointed 
08.07.2021 

4 years  Governor Resources 60% (3/5) 

John Godley Elected 
22.10.2022 

4 years  Teaching Staff Standards and 
Curriculum 

100% (4/4) 

Alex Hanson  Elected 
13.10.2022 

1 year  Student 
Governor 

 80% (4/5) 

Mike Hardware Appointed 
01.01.2023 

4 years  Governor  33% (1/3) 

Stephen 
Isherwood 

Appointed 
01.12.2022 

4 years  Governor  Standards and 
Curriculum 

75% (3/4) 

Eddie Johnson Reappointed  
15.12.2018 

4 years Term of 
office ended 
15.12.2022 

Governor Chair of 
Resources to 
06.12.2022,  
Search and 
Governance, 
Remuneration 

50% (1/2) 

Elizabeth 
Laycock 

Reappointed 
19.05.2020 

4 years  Governor Chair of 
Corporation,  
Standards and 
Curriculum, 
Remuneration, 
Resources  

100% (5/5) 
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Name Date of 
appointment 

Term 
of 
office 

Date of 
resignation 

Status of 
appointment 

Committees 
served 
 

Attendance 

Ray Levy Reappointed  
11.10.2020 

4 years  Governor Audit, Chair of 
Audit from 
10.10.2022, 
Vice-Chair of 
Corporation,  
Chair of Search 
and Governance 
to 20.10.2022, 
Search and 
Governance, 
Remuneration  

80% (4/5) 

Lily Lin Reappointed 
01.08.2022 

4 years  Governor Vice-Chair of 
Corporation, 
Chair of 
Standards and 
Curriculum to 
23.11.2022, 
Chair of Search 
and Governance 
from 20.10.2022, 
Remuneration  

80% (4/5) 

Rachel Miller Appointed 
01.08.2022 

4 years 22.11.2023 Governor Resources 40% (2/5) 

Brian Spencer Reappointed  
19.05.2019 

4 years Term of 
office ended 
18.05.2023 

Governor Search and 
Governance, 
Resources, 
Remuneration  

100% (4/4) 

Karen Spencer  01.09.2013 Ex 
Officio 

 Principal Resources, 
Search and 
Governance,  
Standards and 
Curriculum  

100% (5/5) 

Paul Taylor 
 

Reappointed 
05.04.2021 

4 years  Governor Resources, 
Chair of 
Resources from 
06.12.2022, 
Remuneration 

80% (4/5) 

Michael 
Travers 

Elected 
21.03.2021 

4 years  Staff Governor Audit 100% (5/5) 

Dawn Turner Appointed 
07.07.2022 

4 years  Governor Audit 100% (5/5) 

Edward 
Whittle 

Appointed 
01.11.2022 

4 years  Governor  Resources  100% (4/4) 

 
Ruth Lucas, Head of Governance, acts as Clerk to the Corporation. 
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In addition, Harlow College Governors provide instrumental support in attending Corporation 
Committees, College working group meetings, governor training, strategic planning events, 
College functions and other meetings in the College.  The Search and Governance Committee 
as well as considering formal meeting attendance, considers the entire support and expertise a 
Governor brings to the College. 
 
The governance framework 
 
It is the Corporation’s responsibility to bring independent judgement to bear on issues of 
strategy, performance, resources and standards of conduct. 
 
The Corporation is provided with regular and timely information on the overall financial 
performance of the College together with other information such as performance against 
funding targets, proposed capital expenditure, quality matters and personnel-related matters 
such as health and safety and environmental issues.  The Corporation meets at least once each 
term. 
 
The Corporation conducts its business through a number of Committees.  Each Committee has 
terms of reference, which have been approved by the Corporation.  These Committees are 
Resources, Remuneration, Search and Governance, Standards and Curriculum and Audit.  At 
the Corporation meeting on 20th October 2022, the Corporation unanimously approved for the 
Search Committee to become the Search and Governance Committee. Terms of Reference 
were approved at this meeting and authority was given to the Head of Governance to update 
the Standing Orders for 2022-2023.  Full minutes of all meetings, except those deemed to be 
confidential by the Corporation, are available on the website www.harlow-college.ac.uk or 
from the Head of Governance at: 
 
Harlow College 
Velizy Avenue 
Harlow 
Essex 
CM20 3EZ 
 
The Head of Governance maintains a register of financial and personal interests of the 
Governors.  The register is available for inspection at the above address.   
 
All Governors are able to take independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at 
Harlow College’s expense and have access to the Head of Governance, who is responsible to 
the Board for ensuring that all applicable procedures and regulations are complied with.  The 
appointment, evaluation and removal of the Head of Governance are matters for the 
Corporation as a whole. 
 
Formal agendas, papers and reports are supplied to Governors in a timely manner, prior to 
Board meetings.  Briefings are also provided on an ad hoc basis.   
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The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive element and no individual or 
group dominates its decision-making process.  The Corporation considers that each of its non-
executive members is independent of management and free from any business or other 
relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. 
 
There is a clear division of responsibility in that the roles of the Chair and Accounting Officer 
are separate. 
 
Virtual meetings 
 
Following on from consultation with Governors, for 2022/23 all Corporation and the majority 
of Committee meetings are scheduled to be in person with video conferencing available where 
it is not possible for a Governor to attend in person. The Audit Committee and the joint Audit 
and Resources Committee meetings will be held virtually due to the attendance of the 
auditors and best use of time. Search and Governance Committee and Standards and 
Curriculum Committee meetings are to be held onsite however the option of holding the 
meetings virtually will remain.   
 
Appointments to the Corporation 
 
Any new member appointments to the Corporation are a matter for the consideration of the 
Corporation as a whole.  The Corporation has a Search and Governance Committee, consisting 
of up to five members of the Corporation, which is responsible for the selection and 
nomination of any new member for the Corporation’s consideration.  The Corporation is 
responsible for ensuring that appropriate training is provided as required. 
 
Members of the Corporation are appointed for a term of office not exceeding four years.  
Governors may serve for more than two terms, with reappointment taking place after 
consideration is given to College need and performance. 
 
Corporation performance 
 
Governors and the Head of Governance also attended the following training and development 
sessions during the year: 
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ETF Staff Governor Conference  
AoC Staff Governor Network 
ETF Governance Professionals’ Leadership Programme  
ETF Kay White Webinar  
ETF Understanding Sector, Policy and Inspection 
ETF Culture, People and Organisational Development  
AoC East Governance Professionals’ Network  
Carbon Literacy Standard / Carbon Literate accreditation 
ECC Gangs and County Lines Training 
ECC Gangs and County Lines Training Introduction  
SEND Strategic Session 
Governor Visit To Early Years, NEETS, ESOL And Supported Studies Academy 
AoC Chairs’ and Vice-Chairs’ Q&A  
Annual Safeguarding Update Training 
Governor Visit To Early Years, NEETS, ESOL And Supported Studies Academy 
Governor Visit to Student Services  
AoC Curriculum and Quality Committee Chairs’ Network 
Governor Visit To STAC 
Governor Visit To Apprenticeships  
ECC Safeguarding Forum for Governors  
ETF Meeting Local Needs Webinar 
ETF CfEM Reimagining FE Maths  
Student Governors - Relationships, Sex Education and Health Education (RSHE): Developing 
guidance for FE Focus Group  
FutureLearn – Advancing Equity in FE 
FutureLearn - Prevent for FE and Training 
Governor Training Session – Curriculum Reform  
Governor Visit To Engineering And Service Industries Academy  
Governor Visit To Creative Arts Academy  
Governor Visit To Quality And Digital Team  
Governor Visit To Health, Science, Business And IT Academy  
Meetings With Standards And Curriculum staff  
Governor Visit To Construction And Building Services Academy  
AoC Code of Good Governance Consultation Webinar  
AoC Finance and Audit Committees Chairs’ Network  
ETF – Effective Board Behaviours  
ETF – Organisational Development and Culture  
Scrutton Bland Risk Management Training  
ETF – Effective Teaching, Learning and Assessment  
Chairs’ Leadership Programme: Chairs’ Alumni Conference 2023 
AoC / ETF Student Governor Induction  
AoC Governance Professionals’ Conference Part 2 
AoC Governance Professionals’ Conference Part 1  
AoC / ETF New Governor Induction 
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AoC East Chairs’ Network  
ETF ONS Reclassification Webinar  
FutureLearn Introduction to Audit Training  
FutureLearn Financial Management for Board Members Training  
ETF Webinar – Meeting Local Needs  
AoC / ETF Regional Governance Conference  
Health and Safety: 
DSE Users 
Fire Awareness 
Health and Safety at Work  
Manual Handling  
Reporting Sexual Harassment  
ETF Webinar – Governance Professional Qualification  
NSPCC Safer Recruitment in Education 
AoC Annual Conference  
Effective Self-Assessment of Governance  
ETF Governance Professionals Development Workshop – Whose Time Is It Anyway?  
ETF Board Review Session  
AoC Audit Committee Masterclass  
FutureLearn - Understanding Your Role in the Self-Assessment and Quality Improvement Cycle 
FutureLearn - Introduction to Curriculum Design and Planning 
FutureLearn - Safeguarding in the FE and Skills Sector 
FutureLearn - Prevent for FE and Training 

 
The Corporation has considered Department for Education (DfE) guidance on Board reviews 
and the external review of governance will take place in Spring 2024. 
 
The Corporation is committed to the vision set out in its current Strategic Plan, underpinned 
by core values, which is to provide transformational opportunities through delivering 
exceptional student success, enrichment and progression into work or further study.  In 
January 2019, Ofsted judged that Governors and leaders have a clear vision and high 
ambitions for learners and apprentices.  It was also judged that Governors are keenly involved 
in setting the strategic direction of the College and use their wide range of skills to provide 
suitable support and challenge to leaders; Governors have ensured that through good 
financial management, including good financial risk management; Governors know the 
strengths and weaknesses of the provision well.  
 
Search and Governance committee 
 
Throughout the year ending 31 July 2023, the Search and Governance Committee comprised 
up to five members of the Corporation.  The Committee met four times in the year to 31 July 
2023.  
 
The Committee’s responsibilities throughout the year were to advise the Corporation on the 
appointment and reappointment of members of the Corporation and co-optees to 
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Committees of the Corporation and have regard at all time to the provisions of the Instrument 
and Articles of Government including eligibility criteria, the policy and needs of the 
Corporation including expertise and interests sought and equality and diversity and the 
evaluation of the contribution of members seeking reappointment. 
 
The Committee reviewed its skills, knowledge and experience profile of Governors and the 
register of membership at every meeting to ensure that the Board was best placed to address 
upcoming strategic risks and opportunities. The Committee constantly had due regard for the 
diversity of the Board and to ensure where practically possible, that the Corporation profile 
broadly matches that of the College’s student profile and local community.  During the year, 
through its pro-active search activities, the Committee recommended to Board the 
appointment of three highly suitable external Governors and the reappointment of two highly 
suitable external Governors.   
 
The Committee has reviewed the size and diversity of the Board to ensure that any future 
recruitment takes account of the demands of the sector and the skills and knowledge required 
to successfully deliver against these.  
 
The Committee considered the independence of Governors prior to appointment / 
reappointment through robust due diligence in accordance with the Corporation’s 
appointment procedure and policy. 
 
Remuneration Committee 
 
Throughout the year ending 31 July 2023, the Remuneration Committee comprised five 
members of the Corporation.  The Committee’s responsibilities are to make recommendations 
to the Corporation regarding the remuneration and benefits of the Accounting Officer, other 
senior post-holders and the Head of Governance.   
 
The College adopted AoC’s Senior Staff Remuneration Code in full in May 2019 to meet the 
requirements for registration with Office for Students (OfS), ESFA reporting requirements and 
provide consistency. 
 
The Committee met 7 July 2022 to consider the remuneration of the Principal, Deputy 
Principal and Head of Governance. The Committee recommended to the Corporation a pay 
award of 1.5% for these three members of staff effective from 1 August 2022 in line with the 
College’s staff pay award of 1.5% from 1 August 2022. This was approved by the Corporation 
on 7 July 2022.  
 
The Committee met on 6 July 2023 and agreed a £2.5k increase in the sport salary of the Head 
of Governance and to honour the Principal’s contract of employment with the provision of 
private healthcare. This was approved by the Corporation on 6 July 2023.   
 
Details of Senior Post Holders’ remuneration for the year ended 31 July 2023 are set out in 
note 8 to the financial statements. 
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Audit Committee 
 
The Audit Committee comprises three members of the Corporation (excluding the Accounting 
Officer and Chair).  The Committee operates in accordance with written terms of reference 
approved by the Corporation.   
 
The Audit Committee meets four times per year, at least once per term and provides a forum 
for reporting by the College’s internal auditor, reporting accountants and financial statements 
auditors, who have access to the Committee for independent discussion without the presence 
of College management.  The Committee also receives and considers reports from the main FE 
Funding Bodies as they affect Harlow College’s business. 
 
The College’s internal auditor reviews the systems of internal control, risk management 
controls and governance processes in accordance with an agreed plan of input and report 
their findings to management and the Audit Committee. 
 
Management is responsible for the implementation of agreed audit recommendations and the 
Internal Auditor undertakes periodic follow-up reviews to ensure such recommendations have 
been implemented. 
 
The Audit Committee also advises the Corporation on the appointment of internal auditors, 
reporting accountants and financial statements auditors and their remuneration for audit and 
non-audit work as well as reporting annually to the Corporation. 
 
The Audit Committee met four times in the year to 31 July 2023.  The members of the 
committee and their attendance records are shown below: 
 

Committee member Meetings attended 
Ray Levy 4 of 4 
Michael Travers 3 of 4 
Dawn Turner  4 of 4 
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Internal control 
 
Scope of responsibility 
 
The Corporation is ultimately responsible for the College’s system of internal control and for 
reviewing its effectiveness.  However, such a system is designed to manage rather than 
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable 
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. 
 
The Corporation has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Principal, as Accounting 
Officer, for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achievement of its 
policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which she is 
personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to her in the Funding 
Agreement between Harlow College and the funding bodies.  She is also responsible for 
reporting to the Corporation any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.   
 
The purpose of the system of internal control 
 
The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and 
prioritise the risks to the achievement of College policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the 
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage 
them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place 
in Harlow College for the year ended 31 July 2023 and up to the date of approval of the 
annual report and accounts. 

 
Capacity to handle risk 
 
The Corporation has reviewed the key risks to which Harlow College is exposed together with 
the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate 
those risks.  The Corporation is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for 
identifying, evaluating and managing the College's significant risks that has been in place for 
the period ending 31 July 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
accounts.  This process is regularly reviewed by the Corporation. 
 
The risk and control framework 
 
The system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management information, 
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties, and a system of delegation and 
accountability.  In particular, it includes: 
 

• comprehensive budgeting systems with an annual budget, which is reviewed and 
agreed by the Corporation 

• regular reviews by the Corporation of periodic and annual financial reports which 
indicate financial performance against forecasts 

• setting targets to measure financial and other performance 
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• clearly defined capital investment control guidelines 
• the adoption of formal project management disciplines, where appropriate. 
 

The College has an internal audit service, which operated in accordance with the requirements 
of the ESFA’s Post 16 Audit Code of Practice.  The work of the internal audit service is informed 
by an analysis of risks to which the College is exposed, and annual internal audit plans are 
based on this analysis.  The analysis of risks and the internal audit plans are endorsed by the 
Corporation on the recommendation of the Audit Committee.  At minimum, annually, the 
Head of Internal Audit (HIA) provides the governing body with a report on internal audit 
activity in the College. The report includes the HIA’s independent opinion on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the College’s system of risk management, controls and governance 
processes. 

 

Risks faced by the Corporation 

 
The College has well developed strategies for managing risk and strives to embed risk 
management in all that it does.  Risk management processes are designed to protect its 
assets, reputation and financial stability.  The Corporation has overall responsibility for risk 
management and its approach to managing risks and internal controls is explained in the 
Statement of Corporate Governance.   
A risk register is maintained at the College level which is reviewed each time the Audit 
Committee meet.  The risk register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those risks 
occurring, the potential impact on the College and the actions being taken to reduce and 
mitigate the risks.  Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring system.   
 
The College has a Risk Management Policy to manage risks and their potential impact. The risk 
management process also identifies risks which are above and beyond the level of risk the 
College would choose to accept.  As the core business of the College is teaching and learning, 
the College has to find and maintain the appropriate balance of effective risk management 
whilst at the same time driving towards its vision of excellence for learners. The risk 
management process is mindful of how the College maintains organisational flexibility and 
how we ensure the College remains financially viable. 
 
Our assessment of current risks facing the College are plotted on a Risk Assessment Matrix. 
The assessment of each risk and where it might be placed on the Risk Assessment Matrix is 
based on the College’s knowledge and understanding of the risk and is in part subjective. The 
Risk Assessment Matrix is divided into 3 parts. The high risk area (coloured red), medium risk 
area (coloured amber) and low risk area (coloured green). 
 

a) For a new risk being assessed for the first time it is assumed that there are no controls 
in place. 

b) Each risk is assessed and given a score between 1 (low score) and 5 (high score) for 
both impact (I) and likelihood (L). A set of descriptors for each impact or likelihood 
score is attached to the matrix. When assessing the likely impact of a risk, 
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consideration should be given to the impact on College finances, college reputation 
and our ability to provide excellence in teaching and learning. 

c) Each risk is allocated (to a named person to take the lead responsibility) and monitored 
by the Executive. 

d) Subsequent assessment of impact and likelihood are completed with knowledge of the 
controls which are already in place and with knowledge of any further controls which 
we have put in place to further reduce / control the risk. 

e) The multiplying of the impact score (I) X likelihood score (L) will give the assessed risk 
score for each issue being assessed. This score is then plotted on the matrix. 

f) The College has a maximum risk tolerance of 20. Any risk scored above 20 will be 
regarded as an intolerable risk which we would not voluntarily accept given the choice. 
Any risk which scores 25 means the College must accept it being placed in the High 
Risk sector of the matrix and will be subject to monthly review (and action as 
necessary) by the Executive. 

g) Risks which score between 10 and 20 will be placed in the High Risk sector of the 
matrix and be subject to monthly review and action as necessary by the Executive. All 
managers must have a contingency plan for dealing with these risks should they arise. 
Managers should also have appropriate control measures to prevent the risk occurring 
or mitigate its likelihood / impact.  

h) Risks which score between 5 and 9 will be placed in the Medium Risk sector of the 
matrix. All managers must have a contingency plan for dealing with these risks should 
they arise. Managers should also have appropriate control measures to prevent the risk 
occurring or mitigate its likelihood / impact. It is not expected that the Executive will 
review risks in the Medium risk sector with the same frequency as those in the High 
Risk sector unless there is reason to believe the risk needs to be rescored (upwards or 
downwards) on the basis of intelligence received. Risks identified in the Medium Risk 
sector should be subject to monthly review by managers, termly reviews by the 
Executive and as requested by the Audit Committee. 

i) Risks which score between 2 and 4 will be placed in the Low Risk sector of the matrix. 
All managers must have a contingency plan for dealing with these risks should they 
arise. Managers should also have appropriate control measures to prevent the risk 
occurring or mitigate its likelihood / impact. It is not expected that the Executive will 
review risks in the Low Risk sector with the same frequency as those in the High Risk 
sector unless there is reason to believe the risk needs to be rescored (upwards or 
downwards) on the basis of intelligence received. Risks identified in the Low Risk sector 
should be subject to monthly review by managers, termly reviews by the Executive and 
as requested by the Audit Committee. 
 

The College’s key risks are identified in the Strategic Report. 
 
Control weaknesses identified 
 
No significant internal control weaknesses or failures have been identified which required 
action. 
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Responsibilities under funding agreements 
 
The Corporation has met its contractual responsibilities under its funding agreements and 
contracts with the ESFA. 
 
The Department for Education and Education and Skills Funding Agency introduced new 
controls for the college on 29 November 2022 on the day that the Office for National Statistics 
reclassified colleges as public sector organisations in the national accounts. The ESFA chief 
executive communicated these changes to all college accounting officers and explained plans 
to introduce a college financial handbook in 2024. The College has reviewed its policies, 
procedures and approval processes in line with these new requirements to ensure there are 
systems in place to identify and handle any transactions for which DfE approval is required.   
 
Statement from the Audit Committee 
 
The Audit Committee has advised the Board of Governors that the Corporation has an 
effective framework for governance and risk management in place. The Audit Committee 
believes the Corporation has effective internal controls in place.  
 
The specific areas of work undertaken by the audit committee in 2022/23 and up to the date 
of the approval of the financial statements are: 

 
Audit Assurance level provided 

2022/23:  

Single Central Record  Strong 

Learner Recruitment  Significant 

Key Financial Controls (General Ledger)  Significant 

Learner Records (Apprenticeship & classroom based) Significant 

Examinations Significant 

2023/24:  

Human Resources (Recruitment and Retention) Significant 

Learner Recruitment (16-18) Significant 
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Annex G Audits conducted by Internal Auditors: 
 
Audit Outcome 

EdTech Demonstrator  Positive 

Strategic Development Fund Positive 

Taking Teaching Further Positive 

 
Review of effectiveness 
 
As Accounting Officer, the Principal has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control.  Her review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is 
informed by: 
 

• the work of the internal auditor; and 
• the work of the executive managers within the College who have responsibility for the 

development and maintenance of the internal control framework; and 
• comments made by the College’s financial statements auditors, the reporting 

accountant for regularity assurance, the appointed funding auditors in their 
management letters and other reports. 

 
The Accounting Officer has been advised on the implications of the result of her review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Audit Committee, which oversees the 
work of the internal auditor and other sources of assurance, and a plan to address weaknesses 
and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. 
 
The Executive team, consisting of the Principal, Deputy Principal, Vice-Principals, Assistant 
Principals and Executive Directors, receives reports setting out key performance and risk 
indicators and considers possible control issues brought to their attention by early warning 
mechanisms, which are embedded within the departments and reinforced by risk awareness 
training.  The Executive team and the Audit Committee also receive regular reports from 
internal audit, which include recommendations for improvement. 
 
The Audit Committee's role in this area is confined to a high-level review of the arrangements 
for internal control.  The Corporation's agenda includes a regular item for consideration of risk 
and control and receives reports thereon from the Executive Group and the Audit Committee.  
The emphasis is on obtaining the relevant degree of assurance and not merely reporting by 
exception.  At its meeting on 14 December 2023, the Corporation carried out the annual 
assessment of internal control for the year ended 31 July 2023 by considering documentation 
from the Executive Group and the internal audit taking account of events since 31 July 2023. 
 
Based on the advice of the Audit Committee and the Accounting Officer, the Corporation is of 
the opinion that the College has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk 
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Members of the Corporation  
 
The members of the Corporation, as charity trustees, are required to present audited financial 
statements for each financial year.  

Within the terms and conditions of the Corporation’s grant funding agreements and contracts 
with ESFA, the Corporation – through its Accounting Officer – is required to prepare financial 
statements and an operating and financial review for each financial year in accordance with the 
Statement of Recommended Practice – Accounting for Further and Higher Education, ESFA’s 
college accounts direction and the UK’s Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and which give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Corporation and its surplus / deficit of income 
over expenditure for that period. .                                                  .              
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Corporation is required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently 
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements 
• assess whether the Corporation is a going concern, noting the key supporting 

assumptions qualifications or mitigating actions as appropriate 
• prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to 

assume that the college will continue in operation. 
 
The Corporation is also required to prepare a Members’ Report which describes what it is 
trying to do and how it is going about it, including information about the legal and 
administrative status of the Corporation..                                                  .              
 
The Corporation is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose, with 
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the college and which enable it to 
ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with relevant legislation 
including the Further and Higher Education Act 1992 and Charities Act 2011, and relevant 
accounting standards. It is responsible for taking steps that are reasonably open to it to 
safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.  
 
The Corporation is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of its website; the work carried 
out by auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors 
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements 
since they were initially presented on the website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing 
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other 
jurisdictions. 

Members of the Corporation are responsible for ensuring that expenditure and income are 
applied for the purposes intended and that the financial transactions conform to the authorities 
that govern them. In addition, they are responsible for ensuring that funds from ESFA, and any 
other public funds, are used only in accordance with ESFA’s grant funding agreements and 
contracts and any other conditions, that may be prescribed from time to time by ESFA, or any 
other public funder, including that any transactions entered into by the Corporation are within 
the delegated authorities set out in the “Dear accounting officer” letter of 29 November 2022 
and ESFA’s bite size guides. Members of the Corporation must ensure that there are appropriate 
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Independent auditor’s report to the Corporation of Harlow College 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Harlow College (the ‘College') for the year ended 
31 July 2023 which comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in reserves, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows, the principal accounting 
policies, and the notes to the financial statements. The financial reporting framework that has 
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, 
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the 
UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In our opinion, the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2023 and of its
surplus of income over expenditure for the year then ended; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

• in all material respects, funds from whatever source administered by the College for
specific purposes have been properly applied to those purposes and managed in
accordance with relevant legislation;

• in all material respects, funds provided by the OfS, UK Research and Innovation (including
Research England), the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Department for
Education have been applied in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions; and

• the requirements of OfS’s accounts direction have been met

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) 
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the College in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the members of the Corporation’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is 
appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating 
to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the College’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue. 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the members of the Corporation with respect to 
going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report. 

Other information 
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The members of the Corporation are 
responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the 



45

financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this 
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Post 16 Code 
of Practice issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency requires us to report to you if, in 
our opinion: 

• proper accounting records have not been kept;
• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
• all the information and explanations required for the audit were not received.

We have nothing to report to you in respect of the following matter, in relation to which the Office 
for Students requires us to report to you, if in our opinion: 

• The College’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
has been materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Corporation 

As explained more fully in the statement of responsibilities of members of the Corporation, the 
members of the Corporation are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and 
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the members 
of the Corporation determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, the members of the Corporation are responsible for 
assessing the College’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the members of 
the Corporation either intend to liquidate the College or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We 
design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 
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misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are 
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below: 

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of 
irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows: 

• the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the
appropriate competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations;

• we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the College through discussions with
management, and from our knowledge and experience of the sector;

• we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct
material effect on the financial statements or the operations of the College, including the
Further and Higher Education Act 1992, funding agreements with the ESFA and
associated funding rules, ESFA regulations, data protection legislation, anti-bribery,
safeguarding, employment, health and safety legislation;

• we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above
through making enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

• identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the
team remained alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the College’s financial statements to material misstatement, 
including obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by: 

• making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to
fraud, their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

• considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance
with laws and regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we: 

• performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;
• tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions; and
• assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting

estimates set out in the accounting policies were indicative of potential bias;

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we 
designed procedures which included, but were not limited to: 

• agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;
• reading the minutes of Corporation meetings;
• enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and
• reviewing any available correspondence with HMRC and the College’s legal advisors.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that 
laws and regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become 
aware of non-compliance. Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify 
non-compliance with laws and regulations to enquiry of the members of the Corporation and other 
management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. 
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Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from 
error as they may involve deliberate concealment or collusion. 

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s 
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 
report. 

Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the College’s members, as a body, in accordance with the College’s 
Articles of Government. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
College’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for 
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility 
to anyone other than the College and the College’s members as a body, for our audit work, for 
this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Buzzacott LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
130 Wood Street  
London  
EC2V 6DL 

Date: 20 December 2023 
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Reporting accountant’s assurance report on regularity 

To: The Corporation of Harlow College and Secretary of State for Education, 
acting through Education and Skills Funding Agency (the ESFA)  

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 June 2021 and further to the 
requirements and conditions of funding in the ESFA’s grant funding agreements and 
contracts, or those of any other public funder, we have carried out an engagement to 
obtain limited assurance about whether anything has come to our attention that would 
suggest, in all material respects, the expenditure disbursed and income received by Harlow 
College during the period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 have not been applied to the 
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the 
authorities which govern them.  

The framework that has been applied is set out in the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice 
(the Code) issued by the ESFA and in any relevant conditions of funding concerning adult 
education notified by a relevant funder. In line with this framework, our work has 
specifically not considered income received from the main funding grants generated through 
the Individualised Learner Record data returns, for which the ESFA has other assurance 
arrangements in place. 

This report is made solely to the Corporation of Harlow College and the ESFA in accordance 
with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state 
to the Corporation of Harlow College and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in 
a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept, 
or assume, responsibility to anyone other than the Corporation of Harlow College and the 
ESFA for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.  

Respective responsibilities of Harlow College and the reporting accountant 

The Corporation of Harlow College is responsible, under the requirements of the Further & 
Higher Education Act 1992, subsequent legislation and related regulations and guidance, 
for ensuring that expenditure disbursed, and income received, are applied for the 
purposes intended by Parliament, and the financial transactions conform to the authorities 
that govern them. Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United 
Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and 
report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Code. We 
report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which 
suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received, during the 
period 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by 
Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern 
them.  

Approach 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Code issued by the ESFA. 
We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in that framework. The 
objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain 
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to 
express a negative conclusion on regularity. 
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A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance 
engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would 
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance 
engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. Our engagement includes 
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity of the Corporation’s income 
and expenditure. 

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes: 
• An assessment of the risk of material irregularity and impropriety across all of the

College’s activities;
• Further testing and review of the areas identified through the risk assessment including

enquiry, identification of control processes and examination of supporting evidence
across all areas identified as well as additional verification work where considered
necessary; and

• Consideration of evidence obtained through the work detailed above and the work
completed as part of our financial statements audit in order to support the regularity
conclusion.

Conclusion 

In the course of our work nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material 
respects, the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2022 
to 31 July 2023 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament, and the 
financial transactions do not conform to the authorities that govern them.  

Buzzacott LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
130 Wood Street  
London  
EC2V 6DL 
Date: 20 December 2023 



Statements of Total Comprehensive Income

Notes

Before 
actuarial 
pension 

adjustments

Actuarial 
pension 

adjustments

After 
actuarial 
pension 

adjustments

Before 
actuarial 
pension 

adjustments

Actuarial 
pension 

adjustments

After 
actuarial 
pension 

adjustments

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000  £’000 
INCOME
Funding body grants 2             23,454                    -              23,454             22,962                    -               22,962 
Tuition fees and education 
contracts

4                 407                    -                   407                 734                    -                   734 

Other income 6               2,027                    -                2,027               1,829                    -                 1,829 
Investment income 7                 495                 153                 648                 235                    -                   235 

Total income            26,383                 153           26,536            25,760                    -              25,760 

EXPENDITURE
Staff costs 8             18,333                 281            18,614             17,955               1,196             19,151 
Other operating expenses 9               5,295                   21              5,316               5,089                   16               5,105 
Depreciation and amortisation 11,12               2,355                    -                2,355               2,241                    -                 2,241 
Interest and other finance costs 10                 337                    -                   337                 281                 167                 448 

Total expenditure            26,320                 302           26,622            25,566              1,379            26,945 

Taxation                    -                      -                     -                      -                      -                      -   

                  63               (149)                 (86)                 194            (1,379)            (1,185)

Actuarial gain in respect of 
pensions schemes

22                 100                 149                 249                 197             12,267             12,464 

                163                    -                   163                 391            10,888            11,279 Total Comprehensive Income for 
the year

Year ended 31 July
2023 2022

 Year ended 31 July  

(Deficit)/Surplus for the year
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Statement of Changes in Reserves

Income and 
Expenditure 

account

Revaluation 
reserve

Total

£’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1st August 2021           13,872           12,014          25,886 

Deficit from the income and expenditure account            (1,185)                  -             (1,185)
Other comprehensive income           12,464                  -            12,464 
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure 
reserves                106              (106)                 -   

Total comprehensive income for year ended 31 July 2022          11,385             (106)         11,279 

Balance at 31st July 2022           25,257           11,908          37,165 

Deficit from the income and expenditure account                 (86)                  -                  (86)
Other comprehensive income                249                  -                 249 
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure 
reserves                104              (104)                 -   
Total comprehensive income for the year               267             (104)               163 

Balance at 31st July 2023          25,524          11,804         37,328 
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Statement of Cash Flows  Year ended 

31 July 

 Year ended 

31 July  

Notes 2023 2022

 £’000  £’000 

Cash inflow from operating activities

Deficit for the year                 (86)             (1,185)

Adjustment for non cash items

Depreciation and amortisation 11,12             2,355               2,241 

Decrease in stock                    4                     5 

(Increase) / decrease in debtors 13                  76                (583)

Increase / (decrease) in creditors due within one year 14                444             (3,744)

Increase / (decrease) in creditors due after one year 15               (759)               2,203 

Decrease in enhanced pension provision 17               (173)                (282)

Pensions costs less contributions payable                349               1,773 

Adjustment for investing or financing activities

Investment income 7               (331)                (235)

Swap interest 7               (164)                (208)

Interest payable 10                296                 257 

Net cash flow from operating activities            2,011                 242 

Cash flows used in investing activities

Investment income 331               235                

Payments made to acquire fixed assets (1,895)           (3,961)            

Capital funding received 1,599            2,861             

35                 (865)               

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid               (293)                (248)

Interest element of finance lease rental payments                   (3)                    (9)

Repayments of amounts borrowed               (578)                (555)

Capital repayments of finance lease payments                 (99)                (136)

(973)              (948)               

Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year 1,073           (1,571)           

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 18             5,277               6,848 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 18             6,350               5,277 
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1. Statement of accounting policies and estimation techniques 
 
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items 
which are considered material in relation to the financial statements. 
 
Basis of preparation 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of 
Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 (the 2019 FE HE 
SORP), the College Accounts Direction for 2022/23 and in accordance with Financial 
Reporting Standard 102 – “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United 
Kingdom and Republic of Ireland” (FRS 102). The college is a public benefit entity and has 
therefore applied the relevant public benefit requirements of FRS 102. 

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in 
applying the college's accounting policies. 
 
Basis of accounting 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.                                                               
 
Basis of consolidation 
 
In accordance with FRS 102, the activities of the student union have not been consolidated 
because the College does not control those activities.   
 
Going concern 
 
The activities of the College, together with the factors likely to affect its future development 
and performance are set out in the Strategic Report. The financial position of the College, its 
cash flow, liquidity and borrowings are presented in the Financial Statements and 
accompanying Notes. 

 
The College currently has £3,878k of loans outstanding with bankers on terms negotiated in 
2017 and May 2021.  The College loans are on fixed interest rates until November 2026 
(when one loan is repayable) and July 2027.  The College’s forecasts and financial 
projections indicate that it will be able to operate within these existing facilities and 
covenants for the foreseeable future.   
 
The Corporation is confident that the College will have sufficient funds to continue to meet 
its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial 
statements and have therefore prepared these statements on a going concern basis. 
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Recognition of income 
 
Revenue grant funding 
 
Government revenue grants include funding body recurrent grants and other grants and are 
accounted for under the accrual model as permitted by FRS 102. Funding body recurrent 
grants are measured in line with best estimates for the period of what is receivable and 
depend on the particular income stream involved.  
 
The final grant income is normally determined with the conclusion of the year end 
reconciliation process with the funding body following the year end, and the results of any 
funding audits. 16-18 funding is not subject to reconciliation and is therefore not subject to 
contract adjustments. 
 
Levy-funded and ESFA funding for co-investment model apprenticeships income is 
measured in line with best estimates of the provision delivered in the year. 
 
The recurrent grant from OfS represents the funding allocations attributable to the current 
financial year and is credited direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 
Where part of a government grant is deferred, the deferred element is recognised as 
deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and 
creditors due after more than one year as appropriate. 
 
Grants from non-government sources, including grants relating to assets, are recognised in 
income when the performance-related conditions have been met and the grant will be 
received.  Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met is 
recognised as a liability within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the 
conditions are met. 
 
Capital grant funding - government grants 
 
Government capital grants are capitalised, held as deferred income and recognised in 
income over the expected useful life of the asset, under the accrual model as permitted by 
FRS 102. Other, non-governmental, capital grants are recognised in income when the 
college is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related conditions being met. 
Income received in advance of performance related conditions being met is recognised as 
deferred income within creditors on the Balance Sheet and released to income as conditions 
are met.   
 
Other income 
 
Income from the supply of services is recognised at fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable and represents the value of services to the extent there is a right to 
consideration. 
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Income from tuition fees including employer funding for co-investment funded 
apprenticeships is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and is recognised 
in the period for which it is received. 
 
Investment income 
 
All income from short-term deposits is credited to the income and expenditure account in 
the period in which it is earned on a receivable basis. 
 
 
Agency arrangements 
 
The college acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain discretionary support 
funds and any other arrangements. Related payments received from the funding bodies and 
subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the income and expenditure of 
the college where the college is exposed to minimal risk or enjoys minimal economic 
benefit related to the transaction. 
 
Accounting for post-employment benefits 
 
Post-employment benefits to employees of the College are principally provided by the 
Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  These 
are defined benefit plans, which are externally funded and contracted out of the State 
Second Pension.                                                                                                          x 
  
Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) 
 
The TPS is an unfunded scheme. Contributions to the TPS are calculated so as to spread the 
cost of pensions over employees’ working lives with the College in such a way that the 
pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. 
The contributions are determined by qualified actuaries on the basis of valuations using a 
prospective benefit method. 
 
The TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use 
defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution plan and 
the contributions recognised as an expense in the income statement in the periods during 
which services are rendered by employees.                                          x                                                                                                            
 
Essex Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
 
The LGPS is a funded scheme. The assets of the LGPS are measured using closing fair values. 
LGPS liabilities are measured using the projected unit credit method and discounted at the 
current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to 
the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at 
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each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service 
costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. 
They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. 

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation 
and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the 
scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit 
obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the 
actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in interest and other finance costs. 

If the present value of the defined pension scheme obligations at the balance sheet date is 
less than the fair value of the scheme assets at that date, the scheme is in surplus. The 
College only recognises a scheme surplus as a defined benefit pension scheme asset only to 
the extent that it is able to recover the surplus either through reduced contributions in the 
future or through refunds from the scheme. 
 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in actuarial gains and losses. 
 
Short term Employment benefits 
 
Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) 
are recognised as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the 
College. Any unused benefits are accrued and measured as the additional amount the 
College expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement. 
 
Enhanced Pensions 
 
The actual cost of any enhanced ongoing pension to a former member of staff is paid by a 
college annually. An estimate of the expected future cost of any enhancement to the 
ongoing pension of a former member of staff is charged in full to comprehensive income in 
the year that the member of staff retires. In subsequent years a charge is made to 
provisions in the balance sheet using the enhanced pension spreadsheet provided by the 
funding bodies. 
 
Tangible fixed assets 
 
Tangible fixed assets are stated at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Land and Buildings have been revalued to fair value on or 
prior to the date of transition to the FE HE SORP, and are measured on the basis of deemed 
cost, being the revalued amount at the date of that revaluation.  
 
Where parts of a fixed asset have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate 
items of fixed assets. 
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Land and buildings 
 
Land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet at cost or deemed cost for land and 
building revalued at the date of transition to FRS102.  The associated credit is included in 
the revaluation reserve. The difference between depreciation charged on the historic cost of 
assets and the actual charge for the year calculated on the revalued amount is released to 
the income and expenditure account reserve on an annual basis.  
 
The land gifted from Stansted Airport in 2018 with a commercial value of £3m has been 
included in the accounts as £1,663k based on an educational value. 
 
Freehold buildings including associated professional fees are depreciated on a straight line 
basis over their expected useful life to the College of between 10 and 52 years.  Freehold 
land is not depreciated as it is considered to have an infinite useful life. 
 
A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. 
 
On adoption of FRS 102, the College followed the transitional provision to retain the book 
value of buildings, land was revalued at the date of transition to FRS102, as deemed cost 
but the College did not adopt a policy of revaluations of these properties in the future. 
 
Assets under construction  
 
Assets under construction are accounted for at cost, based on the value of architects’ 
certificates and other direct costs, incurred to 31 July each year. They are not depreciated 
until they are brought into use. 
 
Subsequent expenditure on existing fixed assets 
 
Where significant expenditure is incurred on tangible fixed assets after initial purchase it is 
charged to income in the period it is incurred, unless it increases the future benefits to the 
College, in which case it is capitalised and depreciated on the relevant basis. 
 
Equipment 
 
Equipment costing less than £2,000 per individual item is recognised as expenditure in the 
period of acquisition, with the exception of some computer hardware items costing less 
than £2,000 individually which have been capitalised. All other equipment is capitalised and 
recognised at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
 
Capitalised equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its remaining useful 
economic life as follows: 
 

• motor vehicles and general equipment – between 5 and 10 years straight-line basis 
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• computer equipment – between 3 and 10 years on a straight-line basis 

 
• furniture, fixtures and fittings – between 3 and 10 years on a straight-line basis. 

 
Intangible assets 
 
Intangible fixed assets including software is initially recognised at cost and are subsequently 
amortised. Intangible assets are amortised to the statement of comprehensive income on a 
straight line basis over their useful lives, and for software this is over 3 to 5 years.  
Purchased Goodwill arising in respect of the acquisition of the trade and assets of a trading 
company is amortised over 10 years.  
 
Borrowing costs 
 
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Leased assets 
 
Costs in respect of operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.  Any lease premiums or 
incentives relating to leases signed after 1st August 2014 are spread over the minimum lease 
term. The College has taken advantage of the transitional exemptions in FRS 102 and has 
retained the policy of spreading lease premiums and incentives to the date of the first 
market rent review for leases signed before 1st August 2014. 
 
Leasing agreements which transfer to the College substantially all the benefits and risks of 
ownership of an asset are treated as finance leases.  
 
Assets held under finance leases are recognised initially at the fair value of the leased asset 
(or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. 
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease 
obligation. Assets held under finance leases are included in tangible fixed assets and 
depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as owned assets.  
 
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of 
the outstanding liability. The finance charges are allocated over the period of the lease in 
proportion to the capital element outstanding. 
 
Stock 
 
Stock is valued at the lower of their cost and net realisable value, being estimated selling 
price less costs to complete and sell. Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, 
slow-moving and defective items. 
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Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are 
repayable on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. 
 
Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. An investment qualifies as 
a cash equivalent when it has maturity of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition.  
 
Financial instruments 
 
Trade and other debtors (including accrued income) which are receivable within one year 
and which do not constitute a financing transaction are initially measured at the transaction 
price and subsequently measured at amortised cost, being the transaction price less any 
amounts settled and any impairment losses.     
 
Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s 
contractual obligations, rather than the financial instrument’s legal form. 
 
All loans, investments and short term deposits held by the College are classified as basic 
financial instruments in accordance with FRS 102. These instruments are initially recorded at 
the transaction price less any transaction costs (historical cost). FRS 102 requires that basic 
financial instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost, however the College 
has calculated that the difference between the historical cost and amortised cost basis is not 
material and so these financial instruments are stated on the balance sheet at historical 
cost. Loans and investments that are payable or receivable within one year are not 
discounted. 
 
Taxation 
 
The College is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance 
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation 
tax purposes. Accordingly, the College is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of 
income or capital gains received within categories covered by sections 478-488 of the 
Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to 
the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes. 
 
The College is partially exempt in respect of Value Added Tax, so that it can only recover 
less than 1% of the VAT charged on its inputs. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the 
costs of such inputs and added to the cost of tangible fixed assets as appropriate, where the 
inputs themselves are tangible fixed assets by nature. 
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Provisions and contingent liabilities 
 
Provisions are recognised when the College has a present legal or constructive obligation as 
a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to 
settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount expected to be 
required to settle the obligation is recognised at present value using a pre-tax discount rate. 
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period it arises. 
 
A contingent liability arises from a past event that gives the College a possible obligation 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the College. Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements. 
 
Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
In preparing these financial statements, management have made the following judgements: 
 

• Determine whether leases entered into by the College either as a lessor or a lessee 
are operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of 
whether the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the lessor to 
the lessee on a lease by lease basis. 

 
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 

• Tangible fixed assets 
 

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual 
values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed 
annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re-assessing asset lives, factors 
such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes are taken into account. 
Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions, the remaining 
life of the asset and projected disposal values. 
 

• Gifted University College Building 

The College has assessed the value of the building at £7,918k, being the depreciated 
published values of the original project.  This valuation reflects the building being used for 
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educational use only.  The building has been included as a donated asset and capitalised on 
the balance sheet as an asset and will be depreciated over its deemed remaining useful life. 
 

• Local Government Pension Scheme and Enhanced Pension Provision 
 

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability 
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of 
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions 
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 22, 
will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. The actuary has used a roll forward 
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 
March 2022 to value the pensions liability at 31 July 2023. Any differences between the 
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact 
on the carrying amount of the pension liability. 
 
The enhanced pension provision (disclosed in note 17) relates to the cost of staff who have 
already left the College’s employment and commitments for reorganisation costs from 
which the College cannot reasonably withdraw at the balance sheet date. This provision has 
been recalculated in accordance with guidance issued by the funding bodies.  
 
 
 



Notes to the Accounts (continued)

2

2023 2022

£’000 £’000

Recurrent grants
ESFA - 16-19         14,800         14,468 
ESFA - Adult Education Budget           3,132           2,833 
GLA - Adult Education Budget              235              266 
DfE - Apprenticeships           1,753           1,914 
Office for Students (Note 3)                27                19 
Specific Grants
ESFA – COVID testing                -                  13 
ESFA - High needs              846              846 
ESFA – T Level                  8                -   
ESFA – Excellence in maths              221              253 
ESFA – Tuition fund              254              413 
ESFA – T Level (Equipment)                  5                -   
DfE - FE professional development grant                -                420 
DfE - Strategic development grant              318                50 
DfE - Institute of Technology                29                -   
Teacher pension scheme contribution grant              737              557 
Releases of government capital grants           1,089              910 

       23,454        22,962 

  3 

2023 2022

 £’000  £’000 

               27                19 
        23,427         22,943 
       23,454        22,962 

 
              407              734 

            407             734 

       23,861        23,696 

 Total 

Funding body grants
Year ended 

31 July
Year ended 

31 July

 Total Grants 

Total grant and fee income
Year ended 

31 July
Year ended 

31 July

 Grant income from the OfS 
 Grant income from other bodies 

 Fee income for non-qualifying courses (exclusive of VAT) 
 Total tuition fees and education contracts 

 Total grant and fee income 
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  4 

2023 2022

 £’000  £’000 

             125                98 
               28                39 
             254              352 

               -                245 
            407             734 

 Fees for FE loan supported courses 
 Fees for HE loan supported courses 

Tuition fees and education contracts

 Total 

Included within the above amounts are tuition fees funded by bursaries of £254k (2022: £352k).

Year ended 
31 July

Year ended 
31 July

 Adult education fees 
 Apprenticeship contracts 
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5 Other grants and contracts

2023 2022

£’000 £’000

            828             837 
                2               14 

           830            851 

6 Other income

2023 2022

£’000 £’000

            477             366 
            720             612 
            830             851 

        2,027         1,829 

7 Investment income

2023 2022

 £’000  £’000 

              74               -   
            164             208 
            257               27 

           495            235 
            153               -   

           648            235 

Hedge of variable interest rate, fair value gain

Total

Other grant income

High Needs funding is from local authorities to provide support packages for learners with special
educational needs and disabilities.

Year Year 

Year Year 

Other grant income (High Needs)

Total

Catering
Other income generating activities
Other grants and contracts (note 5)

 Year  Year 

Other interest receivable

Net return on pension scheme (note 22)

Swap interest
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2023 2022
No. No.

303 313
163 165

466 478

2023 2022
£’000 £’000

       13,738        13,400 
         1,357          1,364 
         3,146          4,021 

      18,241       18,785 
            343             331 

      18,584       19,116 
Contractual               14               21 
Non contractual               16               14 

      18,614       19,151 

Staff costs include a premises maintenance team, in house catering service and in house cleaners.

Salary sacrifices available to all staff are child care vouchers, cycle to work scheme and electronic
car leasing.

Staff costs - College

The average headcount of persons (including key management personnel) employed by the
College during the year, expressed as average head count and calculated on a monthly basis, was:

Teaching staff
Non-teaching staff

Staff costs for the above persons

Other pension costs (Note 22)

Payroll sub total

Wages and salaries
Social security costs

Contracted out staffing services

Restructuring costs - 
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2023 2022
No. No.

15 14

2023 2022 2023 2022
No. No. No. No.

£45,001 to £50,000               -   1               -                 -   
£50,001 to £55,000 1               -                 -                 -   
£55,001 to £60,000               -                   1               -                 -   
£60,001 to £65,000                 7                 7                 1                 1 
£65,001 to £70,000                 2                 1               -                 -   
£70,001 to £75,000                 1               -                 -   
£75,001 to £80,000                 2                 2               -                 -   
£85,001 to £90,000               -                 -                 -                 -   
£90,001 to £95,000                 1                 1               -                 -   
£140,001 to £145,000                 1                 1               -                 -   

15 14 1 1

Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other higher paid staff

The number of key management personnel including the 
Accounting Officer was:

Staff costs - College (continued)

Key Management 
Personnel

Other staff

Key management personnel

The number of key management personnel and other staff (including part time staff grossed up to full time
equivalent) who received emoluments, excluding pension contributions and employer's national insurance but
including benefits in kind, in the following ranges was:

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the College and are represented by the College Executive Team (which comprises the
Principal, Deputy Principal, Vice Principals, Assistant Principals and Executive Directors) and the Head of
Governance. 
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8 Staff costs - College (continued)

2023 2022
 £’000 £’000

         1,085 992
4 2

30               22 
210 188

1,329 1,204

2023 2022
£’000 £’000

144 142
4 2

30               22 
               -   8

178 174

2023 2022
No No

Basic salary as a multiple of median basic salary of staff 4.20 4.20
Total remuneration as a multiple of median total remuneration of staff 4.15 4.20

The members of the Corporation other than the Accounting Officer and the staff members did not receive any payment
from the institution other than the reimbursement of travel and subsistence expenses £Nil (2021/22 £Nil) incurred in the
course of their duties.
The pension contributions in respect of the Accounting Officer and key management personnel are in respect of employer's
contributions to the Teachers' Pension Scheme and Local Government Pension Scheme and are paid at the same rate as for
other employees.
The salaries of senior post-holders (Principal & Deputy Principal) are dealt with by the Corporation’s Remuneration
Committee. The Committee met 7 July 2022 to consider the remuneration of the Principal, Deputy Principal and Head of
Governance. The Committee recommended to the Corporation a pay award of 1.5% for these members of staff effective
from 1 August 2022 in line with the College’s staff pay award of 1.5% from 1 August 2022. The Committee considers this to
be appropriate based on comparisons with sector benchmarks derived from the Association of Colleges (AoC) report on its
annual survey of senior staff salaries. No bonuses or other salary enhancements were awarded to any of these staff in
2022/23.

Pension contributions

Total key management personnel compensation

Total

Payment in lieu of pensions

Payment in lieu of pensions

The Committee also met on 18 September 2023 to consider the remuneration of the Principal, Deputy Principal and Head of
Governance. The Committee recommended to the Corporation a pay award of 2% for these three members of staff effective
from 1 August 2023 in line with the College’s staff pay award of 2% from 1 August 2023. This was approved by the
Corporation on 16 October 2023. 

Key management personnel compensation is made up as follows:

Pension contributions

Basic salary
Benefits in kind

Salaries
Benefits in kind

The relationship between the Accounting Officer's pay and remuneration expressed as a multiple of all other employees
based on full-time equivilents, is set out below for both basic salary and total remuneration. Casual staff have been
excluded from the calculation.

The above compensation includes amounts payable to the Principal and Chief Executive who is the Accounting Officer and
who is also the highest paid member of staff.  Their pay and remuneration is as follows:
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9

2023 2022

£’000 £’000
918 931

2,982 2,707
1,416 1,467

        5,316 5,105

2023 2022
 £’000 £’000

              30               27 
              20               17 

Audit of separate schemes / grants                 3                 2 

Audit of separate schemes / grants                 3                 8 
              25               31 
              90             150 

10
2023 2022

£’000 £’000

            293             233 
              -                 15 

            293             248 

                3                 9 
              -               167 

              41               24 

           337            448 

Other operating expenses

Teaching costs

 Other services provided by the financial statements auditor

Non teaching costs
Premises costs

Total

Other operating expenses includes the following charges:

Net Swap interest
On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans:

Total

 

On finance leases
Net interest on defined pension liability (note 22)
Enhanced pension provision interest

Interest and other finance costs

Auditors’ remuneration (excluding VAT):
 Financial statements audit

Operating Lease expense
 Lease Service Charge

 Other services provided by the internal auditors

 Internal audit (excluding VAT)
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

11

Equipment Assets in the 
Course of 

Construction

Total

Freehold Long 
leasehold

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

73,442 103 11,621                     24 85,190

               188                   -                  645                1,027 1,860

                  -                     -                 (260)                     -                 (260)

         73,630               103          12,006              1,051 86,790

          16,419                103             9,095                     -   25,617

1,359                   -   974                     -   2,333

              (226)                     -                 (226)
17,778 103 9,843                     -   27,724

55,852                   -   2,163              1,051 59,066

57,023                   -   2,526                     24 59,573

11

£’000

          71,487 
(24,225)

         47,262 

Cost
Aggregate depreciation based on cost 

Net book value based on cost

Tangible fixed assets

The net book value of tangible fixed assets includes an amount of £Nil (2022: £275k) in respect of equipment held under
finance leases. The depreciation charge on these assets for the year was £201k (2022: £163k). The assets were disposed of at
the end of the financial year.

Clydesdale Bank has a fixed and floating charge over the Harlow College land and buildings.

If the College's fixed assets had not been revalued they would have been included at the following historical cost amounts:

Land was valued 31 July 2016 by Lambert Smith Hampton a firm of independent chartered surveyors. The date of transition
for the revaluation is 31 July 2014.

Tangible fixed assets

As at 31 July 2023

Net book value at 31 July 2023

Net book value at 31 July 2022

At 1 August 2022

Charge for the year

As at 31 July 2023

Depreciation

Disposals

Land and buildings

Cost or valuation
At 1 August 2022

Additions

Elimination in respect of disposals

Stansted Airport College came into use in September 2018. In 2017/18 Stansted Airport gifted 1.97 acres of land with a
commercial value of £3m, the land was included at an educational use value of £1.66m. A 99 year lease (peppercorn) has
been in place since October 2017.  Stansted Airport Limited remains the freeholder of this land.

There is a 125 year lease agreement (from January 2015) between the College and Burnt Mill Academy Trust (BMAT), formerly
the UTC for use of the College land on the Harlow site.  The College remains the freeholder of this land. 

The value of land included above, which is not depreciated totals £9.5m (2020: £9.5m).

Assets under construction include the South East Institute of Technology (IoT) and preparation for J Building refurbishments.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

12

Software Goodwill Total

£’000 £’000 £’000

             748               63                 811 

               35 - 35
(46) - (46)

             737               63                 800 

703               32                 735 

16 6 22
              (46)                  (46)

673 38 711

64 25 89

45               31 76 

Intangible fixed assets

At 1 August 2022

Disposals

As at 31 July 2023

Amortisation

At 1 August 2022

Cost or valuation

Additions

Charge for the year

The amortisation for the year appears in the depreciation and amortisation in the statements of 
comprehensive income

Elimination in respect of disposals

As at 31 July 2023

Net book value at 31 July 2023

Net book value at 31 July 2022
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

13 Trade and other receivables

2023 2022
 £’000 £’000

              622               308 
              951               740 
              648             1,249 

           2,221            2,297 

14

2023 2022
£’000 £’000

              607               579 
- 50

              753 449
              327 338
            2,979             1,218 
            2,242               973 
            1,130             2,508 

           8,038            6,115 

15

2023 2022
£’000 £’000

            3,271             3,877 
- 49

          18,028 18,787

         21,299          22,713 Total

Amounts falling due within one year:

 Trade receivables
 Prepayments and accrued income 
 Amounts owed by the ESFA 

Bank loans

 Total 

Deferred income -  government capital grants

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year

Bank loans
Obligations under finance leases

Amounts owed to the ESFA

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Obligations under finance leases
Trade payables
Other taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred income

Total

Deferred income -  government capital grants
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

16 Maturity of debt

(a) Bank loans

2023 2022
£’000 £’000

                607                 579 
             1,303                 607 
             1,968              3,270 

                  -                     -   

            3,878             4,456 

Bank loans are repayable as follows:

In one year or less
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
In five years or more

Total

As part of the College's phase 4 accommodation strategy in 2007 the College has arranged a facility for a
drawdown of two loans totalling £4,566,000. £3,044,000 is subject to a fixed loan rate of 8.07%. £1,522,000
was subject to a fixed loan rate until its review in November 2017 when it then reverted to a standard
variable rate. In February 2018 a swap product was entered into to fix the rate of the latter loan value to
1.42% (plus 2% margin) until July 2027. The outstanding balance on the bank loans, totalling £1,457,965
(2022: £1,774,680) for phase 4 of the College's accommodation strategy is repayable by instalments between
December 2007 and July 2027 and is secured on a portion of freehold land and buildings of the College.

Clydesdale Bank has a fixed and floating charge over all land and buildings owned by Harlow College.

A bank loan of £2,976,972 to replace two loans was drawn down in May 2021. The loan is subject to a
variable Bank of England Base Rate + 3.5% margin. In June 2021 a swap product was entered into to fix the
rate at 0.80% (plus 3.5% margin) until November 2026. The outstanding balance of £2,419,489 (2021:
££2,682,209) is repayable by instalments between May 2021 and November 2026, with a final lump sum
balance due in November 2026.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

16 Maturity of debt

(b) Finance leases

2023 2022
£’000 £’000

                  -                     50 
                  -                     49 

                  -                    99 

The net finance lease obligations to which the institution is committed are:

Finance lease obligations are secured on the assets to which they relate. The remaining assets were disposed
of in 2023, therefore no further liability arising.

Total

In one year or less
Between two and five years
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

17

Defined 
benefit 

Obligation

Enhanced 
pensions

Total

£’000 £’000 £’000

              -            1,244          1,244 

           (910)             (73)            (983)  
            910            (100)             810 

              -           1,071         1,071 

2023 2022

5.0% 3.3%
2.8% 2.9%

18 Notes to cash flow statement 
 Consolidated analysis of changes in net funds

At 1 
August 

2022

Cashflow New 
finance 

leases

Other non 
cash 

changes

At 31 July 
2023

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Cash in hand, and at bank          5,277          1,073               -                 -            6,350 

Bank loans         (4,456)             578               -                 -           (3,878)
Finance leases             (99)               99               -                 -                 -   

Net debt            722         1,750               -                 -           2,472 

The principal assumptions for this calculation are:

Interest rate
Inflation rate

The enhanced pension provision relates to the cost of staff who have already left the College’s employment and
commitments for reorganisation costs from which the College cannot reasonably withdraw at the balance sheet date.
This provision has been recalculated in accordance with guidance issued by the funding bodies.

Provisions

At 1 August 2022

Expenditure in the period
Transferred from income and expenditure account

At 31 July 2023

Defined benefit obligations relate to the liabilities under the College’s membership of the Local Government pension
Scheme. Further details are given in Note 22.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

19 Capital commitments

2023 2022
£’000 £’000

            842                -   

20 Lease obligations

2023 2022
 £’000 £’000

              71               71 
            167             204 
            485             519 

            723             794 

21 Post balance sheet event

 There are no events after the reporting period.

Land and buildings

Future minimum lease payments due

Not later than one year

Since May 2015 the College has been leasing for five years a premises in the local town for the delivery of
adult courses, the College renewed this lease for a further five years from May 2020. Since August 2016 the
College has been leasing two pieces of land next to the College for staff car parking both on a twenty-five
year lease. Since September 2017 the College is leasing for twenty-five years a premises in the local town
which the College refurbished and transformed for the use of hair and beauty teaching with classrooms,
technical rooms and a retail outlet. It officially opened until September 2021. In August 2021 the College
expanded its occupation of one of the premises in the town, the new lease will run concurrent with the
existing lease for the premise.

Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

At 31 July the College has future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases as follows: 

Commitments contracted for at 31 July
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

22 Defined benefit obligations

2023 2022
£'000 £'000

         1,957          1,998 

Contributions paid             910             827 
FRS 102 (28) charge             281          1,196 

         1,191          2,023 
         3,148          4,021 

           (100)            (197)

        3,048         3,824 

Accordingly, the College has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its
contributions to the TPS as if it were a defined-contribution plan. The College has set out above the information
available on the plan and the implications for the College in terms of the anticipated contribution rates.

The valuation of the TPS is carried out in line with regulations made under the Public Service Pension Act 2013.
Valuations credit the teachers’ pension account with a real rate of return assuming funds are invested in notional
investments that produce that real rate of return.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Contributions amounting to £221,244 (2022: £228,286) were payable to the Teachers' Pension Scheme and are
included in creditors.

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2014. These regulations apply to teachers in schools and other educational
establishments, including colleges. Membership is automatic for teachers and lecturers at eligible institutions.
Teachers and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ’pay as you go‘ basis – these contributions, along
with those made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Act.
Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

The College’s employees belong to two principal post-employment benefit plans: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Essex Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Essex County Council. Both are multi-employer defined-benefit
plans.
The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. Prior to 31
August 2023, the latest formal actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of
the LGPS 31 March 2022. A further valuation of the TPS scheme, relating to the period ended 31 March 2020 was
published in October 2023.

Total pension cost for the year

Teachers Pension Scheme: contributions paid
Local Government Pension Scheme: 

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102 (28.11), the TPS is a multi-employer pension plan. The College is unable
to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Enhanced pension charge to Statement of Comprehensive 
Income

Total Pension Cost for Year within staff costs
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

22

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordane with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM
Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors.  The actuarial valuation of the TPS 

The latest actuarial TPS valuation results, as at 31 March 2020 were released in October 2023.  The valuation result 
is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024, from this date employer contribution rates will increase to 28.6%
(including 0.08% administration levy).

The pension costs paid to the TPS in the year amounted to £1,956,951 (2022: £1,998,404 )

The actuarial valuation of the TPS which applied during the year ended 31 July 2023 was carried out as at 31
March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education in March 2019. The valuation
reported total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218 billion, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £198 billion giving a notional past service deficit of £22 billion.

As a result of the valuation, new employer contribution rates were set at 23.68% of pensionable pay from
September 2019 onwards (compared to 16.48% during 2018/9). The Department for Education has agreed to pay
a teacher pension employer contribution grant to cover the additional costs during the 2022/23 academic year.

A full copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation can be found on the TPS website.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Defined benefit obligations (continued)
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22

 At 31 July  At 31 July 

2023 2022

3.85% 3.75%
2.85% 2.75%
5.15% 3.40%
2.85% 2.75%

50% 50%

At 31 July At 31 July
2023 2022

years years

21.00 21.00
23.60 23.50

22.40 22.30
25.00 24.90

Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Rate of increase in salaries

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit plan, with the assets held in separate funds administered by Essex
County Council . The total payroll contributions made for the year ended 31 July 2023 were £1,147,000,
of which employer’s contributions totalled £910,000 and employees’ contributions totalled £237,000.

The agreed contribution rates is 19.3% from April 2020 plus an agreed deficit contribution of £145,131
(2022: £140,486). The contribution rates for employees range from 5.5% to 12.5% depending on salary
according to a national scale.

The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the LGPS Fund at 31 March 2022
updated to 31 July 2023 by Barnett Waddingham.

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

Future pension increases
Discount rate for scheme liabilities

Commutation of pensions to lump sums
Inflation assumption (CPI)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality
rates.  The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Males
Females

Retiring today
Males
Females

Retiring in 20 years
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22

Fair Value 
at 31 July 
2023

Fair Value 
at 31 July 
2022

£’000 £’000

         22,408          20,701 
              506            2,363 
           3,039            3,420 
           1,074            1,320 
           6,039            4,894 
           5,264            3,546 

        38,330 36,244
             765            (282)

Enhanced  LGPS Total 2023 2022

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

                -            38,422          38,422          36,244 
          (1,071)         (24,897)         (25,968)         (33,366)

                -                  (91)                (91)                (96)
        (1,071)         13,434         12,363           2,782 

2023 2022
£’000 £’000

          (1,191)           (2,023)
Administrative expenses                (21)                (16)

        (1,212)         (2,039)

              153              (167)
             153            (167)

              765              (282)
             (921)                 -   
          (8,487)           (4,026)
           8,792          16,575 

Actuarial loss/(gain) on Enhanced Pension Provision               100               197 
             249         12,464 

Alternative assets

The College's share of the assets in the LGPS plan and the expected rates of return were:

Defined benefit obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme (Continued)

Equities
Gilts and other bonds

Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of plan liabilities 

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Property

Other managed funds

Net interest expenditure

Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Return on pension plan assets in excess of interest

Current service cost

Actual return on plan assets

Amounts included in interest expenditure

Total

Amounts included in staff costs

Cash

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the LGPS plan are as
follows:

Other actuarial gains 
Experience losses arising on defined benefit obligations 

Present value of unfunded liabilities
Net pensions (liability)/ Asset (Note 
17)

Total fair value of plan assets

The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan and 
enhanced pensions benefits is as follows:

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of plan liabilities

The pension scheme surplus of £12,513,000 has not been recognised in the financial statements as the
amount is not deemed recoverable.
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22 Defined benefit obligations (continued)

2023 2022
£’000 £’000

              -         (10,888)

Current service cost         (1,191)         (2,023)
Employer contributions             910             827 
Net interest on the defined (liability)             153           (167)
Administrative costs             (21)             (16)
Actuarial gain             149        12,267 

              -                 -   

2023 2022
£’000 £’000

       32,218        46,763 
         1,191          2,023 
         1,083             742 
            237             224 
        (8,792)       (16,575)
          (949)           (959)

      24,988       32,218 

       36,244        35,875 
         1,236             575 
            765           (282)
            (21)             (16)
            910             827 
            237             224 
          (949)           (959)
      38,422       36,244 

Asset and Liability Reconciliation

Estimated benefits paid

Contributions by Scheme participants
Interest cost

Defined benefit obligations at start of period
Current Service cost

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Changes in financial assumptions

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

Net defined benefit liability as 31 July

Net defined benefit liability in scheme at 1 August
Movement in year:

Movement in net defined benefit liability during the year

Local Government Pension Scheme (Continued)

Defined benefit obligations at end of period

Return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Changes in fair value of plan assets

Contributions by Scheme participants
Estimated benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at start of period
Interest on plan assets

Administration expenses

Fair value of plan assets at end of period
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23

Governor Amount 
Paid 

2022/23   
£'000s

Year-end 
creditor 
balance 
2022/23 

Amount 
Received 
2022/23 
£'000s

Year-end 
debtor 
balance 
2022/23 

Amount 
Paid 

2021/22 
£'000s

Year-end 
creditor 
balance 
2021/22 

Amount 
Received 
2021/22 

£000s

Year-end 
debtor 
balance 
2021/22 

Cllr Eddie Johnson and Cllr Michael
Hardware are Harlow District Council
members.

            156               86                 4                -                 20               68                -                  -   

Cllr Eddie Johnson and Cllr Michael
Hardware are Essex County Councillors

         1,163               89          1,083                -   1065               75 541 241

Cllr Eddie Johnson is a Non-Executive
Director for HTS Group Ltd

                1                -                   3                -                  -                  -                  -                  -   

Cllr Michael Hardware is a Director at
Chelgate

               -                  -                   1                -                  -                  -                  -                  -   

Rachel Miller has paid employment with
Manchester Airport Group (owners of
Stansted Airport Ltd)

            182                -                 23                 1               65                -                 36                -   

Julia Filary has paid employment with
Raytheon Systems Ltd

               -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -   

Jon Bouffler has paid employment with
Anglia Ruskin University

                1                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -   

Karen Spencer is part of the advisory
group

              35                 1                -                  -                 26                -                  -                  -   

The total expenses paid to or on behalf of the Governors during the year was £Nil (2022: £Nil). This represents travel and subsistence and other out of pocket expenses incurred in
attending Governor meetings and charity events in their official capacity. No Governor has received any remuneration or waived payments from the College or its Subsidiaries (2022:
none).

Manchester Airport Group 
(Stansted Academy payments & 
flight simulator sponsorship 
Raytheon (hospitality)

Anglia Ruskin University (room hire)

Association of Colleges (mainly 
membership fees)

Chelgate (room hire and hospitality)

Transactions relating to Declarations of Interest - Governors

Related party transactions

Related Party

Harlow District Council (mainly 
rates)

Essex County Council (mainly High 
Needs receipts and LGPS payments)

HTS Group LTD Harlow 
(Apprenticeship & donation 
received)

Due to the nature of the College’s operations and the composition of the board of governors being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that 
transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the board of governors may have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's 
length and in accordance with the College’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.
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23

Governor Amount 
Paid 

2022/23   
£'000s

Year-end 
creditor 
balance 
2022/23 

Amount 
Received 
2022/23 
£'000s

Year-end 
debtor 
balance 
2022/23 

Amount 
Paid 

2021/22 
£'000s

Year-end 
creditor 
balance 
2021/22 

Amount 
Received 
2021/22 

£000s

Year-end 
debtor 
balance 
2021/22 

Karen Spencer is the Maths hub chair                -                  -                 12                -                  -                  -                 13                -   

Paul Taylor and Hannah Cheeseman
have paid employment with Titan
Airways

                1                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -   

Rod Bristow was a governor of BMAT                -                  -                 52                -                  -                  -                 52                -   

Edward Writtle has paid employment
with Mindful

              56                -                  -                  -                 42                -                  -                  -   

Sotirious Adamopoulos has paid
employment with Pearson Education
Limited

            158                 1                -                  -   

Key Management Personnel Amount 
Paid 

2022/23   
£'000s

Year-end 
creditor 
balance 
2022/23 

Amount 
Received 
2022/23 
£'000s

Year-end 
debtor 
balance 
2022/23 

Amount 
Paid 

2021/22 
£'000s

Year-end 
creditor 
balance 
2021/22 

Amount 
Received 
2021/22 

£000s

Year-end 
debtor 
balance 
2021/22 

Will Allanson has an unpaid directorship
with the Essex Chamber of Commerce

              11                -                   1                -                   1                -                  -                  -   

Paul Whitehead is a trustee and Julien
Sample is a Member

            166                 2                -                  -               103               11                -                  -   

Paul Whitehead has a close personal
relationship with the owners

                4                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -   

Related party transactions (continued)

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

Related Party

Mindful Education (online course 
content)

Herts & Essex High School (Year 10 
& 11 learners)

Related Party

Transactions relating to Declarations of Interest - Key Management Personnel

Titan Airways (Apprenticeships)

Bounce (classes & training course)

BMAT STEM (service charge)

Pearson Education Limited 
(examination fees)

Essex Chamber of Commerce 
(Business Networking Events)

Gateway Qualification (examination 
fees)
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

24 Amounts disbursed as agent

Learner support funds
2023 2022

£’000 £’000

522 486
56 46

578 532

        (580)         (459)
          (18)           (18)

          (20) 55Balance as at 31 July, included in cumulative 
creditors

Funding body grants are available solely for students. In the majority of instances, the
College only acts as a paying agent. In these circumstances, the grants and related
disbursements are therefore excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Disbursed to students
Administration costs

Funding body grants – bursary support
Funding body grants – discretionary learner support
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